
 

1 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Planning Committee 
 

Meeting: Tuesday, 7th June 2022 at 6.00 pm in North Warehouse, The 
Docks, Gloucester, GL1 2EP 

 
 
Membership: Cllrs. Taylor (Chair), Morgan (Vice-Chair), Bhaimia, D. Brown, 

J. Brown, Conder, Dee, Finnegan, Melvin, Sawyer, Toleman and 
Tracey 

Contact: Democratic and Electoral Services 
01452 396126 
democratic.services@gloucester.gov.uk 

 

AGENDA 
 
1.   APOLOGIES  

 
To receive any apologies for absence.  

2.   APPOINTMENT OF CHAIR AND VICE-CHAIR  
 
To confirm the appointment made at the Annual Meeting of Council of Councillor Taylor as 
Chair and Councillor Morgan as Vice-Chair of the Committee  

3.   MINUTES (Pages 7 - 10) 
 
To approve as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on March 1st, 2022.  

4.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
To receive from Members, declarations of the existence of any disclosable pecuniary, or non-
pecuniary, interests and the nature of those interests in relation to any agenda item. Please 
see Agenda Notes.  

5.   LATE MATERIAL  
 
Please note that any late material in respect of the applications detailed below will be 
published as a supplement on the Council’s website in the late afternoon of the day of the 
meeting.  

6.   LAND ADJOINING NAAS LANE, QUEDGELEY, GLOUCESTER - 22/00355/REM 
(Pages 11 - 44) 
 
Application for determination:  
  
Reserved matters application for approval of appearance, landscaping, layout and scale for 
97 dwellings, provision of Green Infrastructure including surface water attenuation and play 
space and other related infrastructure including foul water pumping station (pursuant to 
outline planning permission ref. 18/01228/OUT). Resubmission of application ref. 
21/00317/REM.  

mailto:democratic.services@gloucester.gov.uk


 

2 
 

7.   50 SALISBURY ROAD, GLOUCESTER - 22/00051/FUL (Pages 45 - 58) 
 
Application for determination: 
  
Erection of a single storey rear extension and rear dormer window to facilitate the use of the 
dwelling as a 6 bedroom HMO.  

8.   DELEGATED DECISIONS (Pages 59 - 62) 
 
To consider a schedule of applications determined under delegated powers during the 
months of February, March and April 2022.  

9.   DATE OF NEXT MEETING  
 
July 5th, 2022 at Civic Suite, North Warehouse 

 
 
 

 
Jon McGinty 
Managing Director 
 
Date of Publication: Monday, 30 May 2022 
 
 



 

3 
 

NOTES 
 
Disclosable Pecuniary Interests 
The duties to register, disclose and not to participate in respect of any matter in which a member 
has a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest are set out in Chapter 7 of the Localism Act 2011. 
 
Disclosable pecuniary interests are defined in the Relevant Authorities (Disclosable Pecuniary 
Interests) Regulations 2012 as follows – 
 
Interest 

 
Prescribed description 

 
Employment, office, trade, 
profession or vocation 

Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for 
profit or gain. 
 

Sponsorship Any payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other than 
from the Council) made or provided within the previous 12 months 
(up to and including the date of notification of the interest) in 
respect of any expenses incurred by you carrying out duties as a 
member, or towards your election expenses. This includes any 
payment or financial benefit from a trade union within the meaning 
of the Trade Union and Labour Relations (Consolidation) Act 1992. 
 

Contracts Any contract which is made between you, your spouse or civil 
partner or person with whom you are living as a spouse or civil 
partner (or a body in which you or they have a beneficial interest) 
and the Council 
(a)   under which goods or services are to be provided or works are 

to be executed; and 
(b)   which has not been fully discharged 
 

Land Any beneficial interest in land which is within the Council’s area. 
 
For this purpose “land” includes an easement, servitude, interest or 
right in or over land which does not carry with it a right for you, your 
spouse, civil partner or person with whom you are living as a 
spouse or civil partner (alone or jointly with another) to occupy the 
land or to receive income. 
 

Licences Any licence (alone or jointly with others) to occupy land in the 
Council’s area for a month or longer. 
 

Corporate tenancies Any tenancy where (to your knowledge) – 
 
(a)   the landlord is the Council; and 
(b)   the tenant is a body in which you, your spouse or civil partner 

or a person you are living with as a spouse or civil partner has 
a beneficial interest 

 
Securities Any beneficial interest in securities of a body where – 

 
(a)   that body (to your knowledge) has a place of business or land 

in the Council’s area and 
(b)   either – 

i.   The total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 
or one hundredth of the total issued share capital of that 
body; or 

ii.   If the share capital of that body is of more than one class, 
the total nominal value of the shares of any one class in 
which you, your spouse or civil partner or person with 



 

4 
 

whom you are living as a spouse or civil partner has a 
beneficial interest exceeds one hundredth of the total 
issued share capital of that class. 

 
For this purpose, “securities” means shares, debentures, debenture 
stock, loan stock, bonds, units of a collective investment scheme 
within the meaning of the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000 
and other securities of any description, other than money 
deposited with a building society. 
 

NOTE: the requirements in respect of the registration and disclosure of Disclosable 
Pecuniary Interests and withdrawing from participating in respect of any matter 
where you have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest apply to your interests and those 
of your spouse or civil partner or person with whom you are living as a spouse or 
civil partner where you are aware of their interest. 

 
Access to Information 
Agendas and reports can be viewed on the Gloucester City Council website: 
www.gloucester.gov.uk and are available to view five working days prior to the meeting 
date. 
 
For enquiries about Gloucester City Council’s meetings please contact Democratic 
Services, 01452 396126, democratic.services@gloucester.gov.uk. 
 
If you, or someone you know cannot understand English and need help with this information, or if 
you would like a large print, Braille, or audio version of this information please call 01452 396396. 
 
Recording of meetings 
Please be aware that meetings may be recorded. There is no requirement for those 
wishing to record proceedings to notify the Council in advance; however, as a courtesy, 
anyone wishing to do so is advised to make the Chair aware before the meeting starts.  
 
Any recording must take place in such a way as to ensure that the view of Councillors, 
Officers, the Public and Press is not obstructed.  The use of flash photography and/or 
additional lighting will not be allowed unless this has been discussed and agreed in 
advance of the meeting. 

 

FIRE / EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE 
If the fire alarm sounds continuously, or if you are instructed to do so, you must leave the 
building by the nearest available exit. You will be directed to the nearest exit by council 
staff. It is vital that you follow their instructions:  
▪ You should proceed calmly; do not run and do not use the lifts; 
▪ Do not stop to collect personal belongings; 
▪ Once you are outside, please do not wait immediately next to the building; gather at the 

assembly point in the car park and await further instructions; 
▪ Do not re-enter the building until told by a member of staff or the fire brigade that it is 

safe to do so. 
 

http://www.gloucester.gov.uk/
mailto:democratic.services@gloucester.gov.uk


 

5 
 

Copyright Notice for viewing documents via Public 
Access 

 
Planning application information submitted to the Council is protected by the Copyright Acts 
(Section 47, 1988 Act). You may only use material which is downloaded and/or printed for 
consultation purposes, to compare current applications with previous schemes and to check 
whether developments have been completed in accordance with approved plans. Further 
copies must not be made without the prior permission of the copyright owner. If you link to 
Public Access you have acknowledged that you have read, understood and agree to the 
copyright and other limitations. 
 
Gloucester City Council reserve the right to remove or not display certain planning 
application information for the confidentiality or other reasons. 
 
 
 
 

HUMAN RIGHTS 
 
In compiling the recommendations on the following reports we have given full consideration 
to all aspects of the Human Rights Act 1998 in relation to the applicant and/or the occupiers 
of any affected properties. In particular, regard has been had to Article 8 of the ECHR 
(Right to respect for private and family life, home and correspondence); Article 1 of the First 
Protocol (Right to the use and enjoyment of property) and the requirement to ensure that 
any interference with the right in this Article is both in accordance with the law and 
proportionate. A balance needs to be drawn between the right to develop land in 
accordance with planning permission and the rights under Article 8 and also Article 1 of the 
First Protocol of adjacent occupiers. On assessing the issues raised by the applications no 
particular matters, other than those referred to in the reports, warrant any different action to 
that recommended.  
 
 
 
 
 

EQUALITY ACT 2010 
 
In considering this matter, full consideration has been given to the need to comply with the 
Public Sector Equality Duty under the Equality Act 2010 and in particular to the obligation to 
not only take steps to stop discrimination, but also to the promotion of equality, including the 
promotion of equality of opportunity and the promotion of good relations.  An equality 
impact assessment has been carried out and it is considered that the Council has fully 
complied with the legal requirements. 
 
 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



1 

 
 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 

MEETING : Tuesday, 1st March 2022 
   
PRESENT : Cllrs. Taylor (Chair), Morgan (Vice-Chair), Bhaimia, D. Brown, 

J. Brown, Dee, Melvin, Toleman, Tracey and Sawyer 
 
Officers in Attendance 
  
Planning Development Manager 
Principal Planning Officer 
Locum Planning Solicitor, GS Legal Services Ltd 
Democratic and Electoral Services Officer 
 
Others in Attendance 
Vice-Chancellor, University of Gloucestershire  
  
 

APOLOGIES : Cllrs. Conder and Finnegan 
  
 

 
 

59. MINUTES  
 
  
 RESOLVED that: - the minutes of the meeting held on Tuesday 8 February 2022 were 
approved and signed as a correct record by the Chair. 
 

60. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
  
 Councillor Melvin declared an interest in agenda item 5 - (30-44 Northgate Street 
(Former Debenhams), 21/01323/FUL). 
 

61. LATE MATERIAL  
 
  
Late material had been circulated in respect of agenda item 5 – (30-44 Northgate 
Street (Former Debenhams), 21/01323/FUL). 
 

62. 30-44 NORTHGATE STREET (FORMER DEBENHAMS), GLOUCESTER - 
21/01323/FUL  

Page 7

Agenda Item 3



PLANNING COMMITTEE 
01.03.22 

 

2 

 
The Principal Planning Officer presented the report detailing an application for 
refurbishment works to the exterior of the building and change of use to create circa 
20,000sqm of use class F.1(a), (d) and (e) uses from use class E(a), and 
associated works of demolition, construction and landscaping. 
  
The Vice-Chancellor of the University of Gloucestershire spoke in favour of 
the application. 
  
He stated that the application should be granted on the following grounds: 
  
- The project would be of huge benefit to Gloucester and the University; 
- The granting of the application would provide space for the University to grow; 
- The University of Gloucestershire wanted to be the communities university. The 
central location of the application would allow this ambition to be fulfilled; 
- Discussions were well advanced with Gloucestershire County Council to provide a 
new public library on the ground floor of the proposed build; 
- The granting of the application would benefit the development of Kings Square; 
- The site would house nearly 4,000 students and 350 members of staff; 
- The granting of the application would increase the supply of nurses to meet NHS 
demands; 
- Approving the application would bring vibrancy and growth to the City; 
- It was an environmentally sustainable project. 
- They were happy to accept all the proposed conditions. 
  
  
The Principal Planning Officer responded to members’ questions concerning the 
replacement windows, whether trees on the Oxbode would be felled, what would 
happen to the architectural features inside the building with historical value, whether 
the café proposed would provide hot food, whether there would be green roofs across 
the entire rooftop, whether there would be a garden on the rooftop, queries about 
parking for users of the site and construction vehicles, whether the escalators inside 
the building would be retained and whether the public library proposed on the site 
would replace the library on Brunswick Road as follows: 
  
  
- After a long and rigorous consultation, the University had designed the windows to be 
as close to the original look of the previous windows as possible, whilst providing a 
more thermally efficient window system. The architect stated that the proposed window 
design would preserve the look of the windows and that any differences would be 
minor, if noticeable at all, by non-experts. Furthermore, there was a condition that 
stipulated that development would only take place in accordance with details, 
specifications, and samples of window materials.  
- There was nothing to indicate that trees would need to be felled on the Oxbode. The 
tree officer had indicated that there might need to be some minor pruning works but not 
felling.  
- The building was unlisted but was in the conservation area. In practice, that meant the 
authority had no statutory control over the inside of the premises. The University, 
however, had conducted a thorough heritage appraisal.  
- The applicant had no intention to cook hot food on the site, and the café would 
provide reheated hot food only. A condition was proposed to address the need for 
extraction equipment if hot food cooking was introduced later to protect amenity.  

Page 8



PLANNING COMMITTEE 
01.03.22 

 

3 

- There would not be green roofs across the entire rooftop. However, the applicant had 
proposed one for parts of the roof. His view was that the proposals regarding 
environmental impact were acceptable in policy terms.  
- There would not be a garden on the rooftop.  
- Five accessible parking spaces for disabled persons would be provided in the service 
yard of St Aldates yard. Anyone else wishing to use the site would have to park off-site. 
The highways authority advised that there were no grounds on which to refuse the 
application due to its impact. Further, the site would be used as a teaching facility and 
was not a halls of residence, so there was a chance that students using the facility 
would park at their halls of residence and walk or take alterative transport methods to 
the campus.  
- Construction vehicles would have to be carefully managed by the contractor. The 
service yard would be the logical first stop for construction vehicles to park.  
- The escalators in the building would not be retained. There would be three lifts in the 
building.  
- Whether the library on Brunswick Road would move into the site was not a planning 
consideration. The application before the Committee included a university library and 
separately a public library. The library on Brunswick Road was not part of the planning 
application.  
  
  
Members’ Debate  
  
Councillor Tracey stated that she welcomed the application.  
  
Councillor Bhaimia said that it was an excellent application, that was well located and 
easily accessible.  
  
Councillor Morgan stated that he commended the University for their vision and for 
taking the steps to acquire the Debenhams building. He said that he was happy to see 
that the proposal had been put together quickly. He said that it was important for the 
City to look forwards, that the application was well thought through, welcomed by 
people in Gloucester and would provide huge benefits for the City and that he would 
support the officer’s recommendation.  
  
Councillor Toleman stated that he believed that it would have a positive impact on the 
City and that it would bring many potential customers into the City, which would benefit 
the retail industry immensely.  
  
Councillor Dee noted that she believed that the refurbishment seemed to be sensitive 
to the history of the building and would complement the new forum.  
  
Councillor Sawyer stated that when she first found out about the former Debenhams 
building being up for sale, that she wished that it would become a cultural venue. She 
added, however that the acquiring of it by the University and the proposal to turn it into 
a campus was a great second option. She said that she was pleased to see that it 
would have a café and library and that she liked the design of the build, but would have 
liked to have seen a green roof across the entire rooftop. 
  
  
Councillor D.Brown stated that he echoed points made by members before him. He 
stated that he believed that the frontage onto Kings Square was excellent and that he 
congratulated all involved in bringing forward the application.  

Page 9



PLANNING COMMITTEE 
01.03.22 

 

4 

  
Councillor Melvin stated that it was a gamechanger for the City of Gloucester.  
The Chair stated that the application would help to make the City Centre buzz with 
activity and that he would support the officer’s recommendation.  
  
The Chair moved and the Vice-Chair seconded the officer’s recommendation to grant 
the application subject to the conditions outlined in the report as amended in the late 
material.  
  
RESOLVED that: - planning permission is granted subject to the completion of a legal 
agreement to secure a financial contribution to Travel Plan monitoring; and;  
The conditions outlined in the report, as amended in the late material 
 

63. DELEGATED DECISIONS  
 
The schedule of applications determined under delegated powers during the months of 
December 2021 and January 2022 was noted.  
  
RESOLVED that: - the schedule be noted. 
  
 

64. DATE OF NEXT MEETING  
 
Tuesday 5th April, 2022. 
 
 

Time of commencement:  6.00 pm  
Time of conclusion:  6.54 pm  

Chair 
 

 

Page 10



GLOUCESTER CITY COUNCIL - DEVELOPMENT CONTROL

Committee: Planning

Date: 7th June 2022

Address/Location: Land Adjoining, Naas Lane Quedgeley Gloucester

Application No: 22/00355/REM

Ward: Quedgeley Fieldcourt

Expiry Date: 1st June 2022

Applicant: Taylor Wimpey

Proposal:

Reserved matters application for approval of appearance, landscaping, layout
and scale for 97 dwellings, provision of Green Infrastructure including surface
water attenuation and play space and other related infrastructure including foul
water pumping station (pursuant to outline planning permission ref.
18/01228/OUT). Resubmission of application ref. 21/00317/REM

Report by: Caroline Townley

Appendices:
Site Location Plan
Proposed Layout Plan
Decision Notice for Outline Planning Permission ref. 18/01228/OUT

1.0 SITE DESCRIPTION AND PROPOSAL

1.1 The site has an area of 4.52 hectares and is located on the south eastern edge of
Gloucester. To the east the site is bounded by the main Gloucester to Bristol railway line
which runs north to south along a short section of elevated bank before crossing over Naas
Lane to the northeast of the site. The north of the site is defined by Naas Lane and Dimore
Brook. To the south west is the residential development at Hunts Grove and to the west are
existing residential houses. The site is bounded by field hedgerows with an existing field gate
into the site from Naas Lane and is a generally flat, undeveloped greenfield site. The
application site also includes a thin strip of land extending north of Dimore brook running to
Naas Lane between the car park for SMH Fleet Solutions and the Fosters Poultry site.

1.2 Vehicular access to the site is currently limited to a single field gate off Naas Lane. There are
two unsurfaced Public Rights of Way that cross the site. Quedgeley Footpath 19 runs east to
west adjacent to Dimore Brook and Quedgeley Footpath 20 which runs north to south
through the site parallel to the railway line.

1.3 An application for outline planning permission was submitted in 2018 for the erection of up-to
97 dwellings together with access from Naas Lane, provision of Green Infrastructure including
surface water attenuation and play space and other related infrastructure including foul water
pumping station and vehicular access to 2 Brooklyn Villas. All matters were reserved for future
consideration with the exception of the means of access which was proposed from Naas Lane.

1.4 The outline application was reported to the Planning Committee on 4th August 2020
(18/01228/OUT). At this meeting the Committee resolved:

That the grant of outline planning permission be delegated to the Business Transformation
Manager (Planning) subject to the conditions and the completion of a Section 106 agreement
to secure the following:

 25% of the total number of dwellings with a tenure mix of 75% affordable rented unitsPage 11

Agenda Item 6



and 25% shared ownership units;

 The establishment, funding, operations and responsibilities of a Management Company
to manage the Public Open Space.

 A minimum of 1.05ha of on-site POS to include the provision of a LEAP and MUGA.

 A contribution of £373,163.37 for formal sports, for the improvement of existing outdoor
facilities in the area, as detailed in paragraph 6.25 above.

 A contribution of £349.60 per dwelling as an off-site contribution towards additional
allotment provision at Netheridge.

 A total contribution of £1,663,561.21 for towards education

 A contribution of £19,012 towards libraries

 A Travel Plan Bond Contribution of £35,550 and associated monitoring fee of £5,000

1.5 The outline planning permission was subsequently granted subject to conditions on 4th March
2021 following the completion of the Legal Agreements.

1.6 The current application seeks the approval of reserved matters (appearance, landscaping,
layout and scale) for 97 houses together with the provision of Green Infrastructure including
surface water attenuation, play space and other related infrastructure including a foul water
pumping station.

1.7 It is proposed to provide a mix of dwelling types from 1 bed apartments to 4 bedroom houses
with a variety of house types from detached and semi-detached housing to smaller groups of
terraced houses, an apartment block and a bungalow. The overall housing mix comprises 6
no. one-bed apartments, 1 no. one-bed bungalow, 11 no. two-bed houses, 36 no. three-bed
houses and 43 no. four -bed houses. Of the 97 dwellings, 73 are proposed as open market
with 24 units (25%) of the development proposed as affordable housing. Sustainable Urban
Drainage Systems are proposed to provide both wet and dry attenuation.

1.8 Vehicle access to the development site is proposed via a simple priority junction from Naas
Lane by way of a new junction located between an existing farm access and water
infrastructure on the southwestern side of Naas Lane. The means of access was determined
and agreed as part of the outline planning application.

2.0 RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY

2.1 This site has been assessed through the SALA, (ref. EA03,) process as part of a larger
parcel of land known as ‘Land East of Waterwells Business Park’. The site was previously
part of an employment allocation in the Second Deposit City of Gloucester Local Plan (2002)
and was included in the City Plan Sites Consultation in 2013 as a development opportunity.
However, due to changing circumstances with development both on the Gloucester fringe
and in Stroud district the site was considered to be more suitable for residential use by the
time of the 2017 City Plan consultation.

2.2 Outline planning permission for the erection of up-to 97 dwellings together with access from
Naas Lane, provision of Green Infrastructure including surface water attenuation and play
space and other related infrastructure including foul water pumping station and vehicular
access to 2 Brooklyn Villas was granted 0n 4th March 2021 (ref. 18/01228/OUT). All matters
were reserved for future consideration with the exception of the means of access which was
proposed from Naas Lane.

2.3 An application for approval of reserved matters was subsequently submitted in 2021 (ref.
Page 12



21/00317/REM). This application was withdrawn and replaced by the current application as a
result of the cyber incident.

3.0 RELEVANT PLANNING POLICY

3.1 The following planning guidance and policies are relevant to the consideration of this application:

3.2 National guidance
National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) and Planning Practice Guidance

3.3 Development Plan
Gloucester, Cheltenham and Tewkesbury Joint Core Strategy (Adopted 11 December
2017)
Relevant policies from the JCS include:

SP1 - The need for new development
SP2 – Distribution of new development
SD3 – Sustainable design and construction
SD4 – Design requirements
SD6 – Landscape
SD8 – Historic Environment
SD9 – Biodiversity and geodiversity
SD10 – Residential development
SD11 – Housing mix and standards
SD12 – Affordable housing
SD14 – Health and environmental quality
INF1 –Transport network
INF2 – Flood risk management
INF3 – Green Infrastructure
INF4 – Social and community Infrastructure
INF6–Infrastructure delivery
INF7 – Developer contributions

3.4 City of Gloucester Local Plan (Adopted 14 September 1983)
The statutory Development Plan for Gloucester includes the partially saved 1983 City of
Gloucester Local Plan. Paragraph 215 of the NPPF states that ‘…due weight should be given to
relevant policies in existing plans according to their degree of consistency with this framework
(the closer the policies in the plan to the policies in the Framework, the greater the weight that
may be given.’ The majority of the policies in the 1983 Local Plan are out-of-date and superseded
by later planning policy including the NPPF and the Joint Core Strategy. None of the saved
policies are relevant to the consideration of this application.

3.5 Emerging Development Plan

Gloucester City Plan

The Gloucester City Plan (“City Plan”) will deliver the JCS at the local level and provide policies
addressing local issues and opportunities in the City. The hearing sessions for the examination
of the pre-submission version of the Gloucester City Plan (City Plan) have concluded and the
examining Inspector’s post hearing letter has been received. The letter provides the inspector’s
view on modifications required to make the plan sound. Policies which are not listed as
requiring main modifications may now attract more weight in the consideration of applications,
with those policies which require main modifications attracting less weight depending on the
extent of the changes required.

Page 13



The Plan remains an emerging plan and the weight that may be attributed to individual policies
will still be subject to the extent to which there are unresolved objections (the less significant the
unresolved objections, the greater the weight that may be given) and the degree of consistency
with the NPPF (the closer the policies to those in the NPPF the greater the weight that may be
given).

Relevant policies from the emerging Gloucester City Plan include:

A1 – Effective and efficient use of land and buildings

A2 – Affordable housing

A6 – Accessible and adaptable homes

C1 – Active design and accessibility

E2 – Biodiversity and geodiversity

E5 – Green infrastructure: Building with nature

E6 – Flooding, sustainable drainage, and wastewater

E8 – Development affecting Cotswold Beechwoods Special Area of Conservation

F1 – Materials and finishes

F2 – Landscape and planting

F3 – Community safety

F6 – Nationally described space standards

G1 – Sustainable transport

G2 – Charging infrastructure for electric vehicles

3.6 Other Planning Policy Documents
Gloucester Local Plan, Second Stage Deposit 2002
Regard is also had to the 2002 Revised Deposit Draft Local Plan. This has been subjected to
two comprehensive periods of public and stakeholder consultation and adopted by the Council
for development control purposes. The following “day-to-day” development management
policies, which are not of a strategic nature and broadly accord with the policies contained in the
NPPF, should be given some weight:

OS.2 – Public Open Space Standard for New Residential Development
OS.3 – New housing and open space
OS.7 – New areas of Public open space
A.1 – New housing and allotments

3.7 Supplementary Planning Guidance/Documents
A Planning Brief for Land East of Waterwells Business Park (Interim Adoption SPD) was
produced in 2009. This Planning Brief included the current application site together with land to
the north and west and identified the wider site as being suitable for B1 employment use
together a site for the Showman’s Guild. The allocation also stated that the City Council was
prepared to consider the inclusion of a limited element of residential development if it could be
shown that this was necessary as enabling development. The Planning Brief is a material
consideration with limited weight. Whilst much of the site context and constraints remain
accurate, the brief was written pre-NPPF and JCS adoption and contains references to
abolished plans (RSS) and superseded policies.

Page 14



https://www.gloucester.gov.uk/media/2286/lewbppbinterimadoption140909adopted0909.pdf

All policies can be viewed at the relevant website address:- national policies:
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/national-planning-policy-framework--2
Gloucester City policies:
http://www.gloucester.gov.uk/resident/planning-and-building-control/planning-
policy/Pages/current-planning-policy.aspx

4.0 CONSULTATIONS

4.1 Highway Authority
Layout
No indicative street typography has been submitted at this stage however the developments lay
out shows that a high level of cycle and pedestrian movement around and throughout the site
can be achieved safety.

The site has cycle and pedestrian permeability to the north and south through the site.

The level of permeability through the site is welcomed.

It is considered that as shown the proposed site plan/ Lay out there is the physical ability to
provide the high quality of sustainable travel infrastructure expected.

At highway agreement stage the development will need to provide cycle infrastructure which
meets LCn1/20 standards.

Level surfaces are permitted and welcomed, however there should be some form of separation
between pedestrian and vehicular areas. This can be achieved via subtle placement of a range
of street furniture. The overarching design of the level surface should be to make a drive feel like
they are in a pedestrian area to ensure speeds are kept low.

Although an indicative street typography has not been shown, there are a number of darker grey
sections of carriageway of the spine road, these look to be raised tables or level surfaces. In the
proposed locations these level surfaces/raised tables are suitable.

Car and Cycle parking
Cycle parking will be required to be shown with secure convenient and weatherproof cycle
parking provided for all types of residential units. Cycle parking should be in line with MFGS
standards

The proposed quantum of off-street car parking should be provided in line with MfGS minimum
standards.

The current lay out shows that plot sizes and the indicative lay out of the highway will be able to
physically provide for the estimated quantum of car and cycle parking.

Visitor parking can be provided in off street locations but should be located as to not obstruct the
flow of traffic, cycle infrastructure or the path of larger vehicles.

Electric vehicle charging should be provided in line with the specification made in the 2021
revision of the MfGS. The current proposed lay out highlights no barriers as to why this cannot
be achieved at present.

Page 15



Servicing, deliveries and refuse collection
Swept paths have not been provided to show that vehicles can turn within the internal sections
of the site. Neither have any specific loading areas been provided.

Turning heads have been proposed which are of a size that can accommodate an 11.2m refuse
vehicle and other facilities internally which can accommodate other service/ emergency vehicles
when required.

Landscaping
None of the proposed landscaping looks to impact on and forward visibility or driven/pedestrian
visibility splays.

Summary/recommendation
While very little information relating to the proposed street typography or highway design has
been submitted it is clear that the development can physically provide the following:

 Safe usable local highway network
 Pedestrian and cycle movement
 Turning of large vehicles
 Suitable levels of off-street parking

Gloucestershire County Council, the Highway Authority acting in its role as Statutory Consultee has
undertaken a full assessment of this planning application. Based on the appraisal of the development
proposals the Highways Development Management Manager on behalf of the County Council, under
Article 18 of the Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure)(England) Order,
2015 recommends that this application be approved subject to conditions.

4.2 Network Rail
No objections in principle to the details provided.

Any works on this land will need to be undertaken following engagement with Asset Protection
to determine the interface with Network Rail assets, buried or otherwise and by entering into a
Basis Asset Protection Agreement, if required, with a minimum of 3months notice before works 
start.

4.3 Public Rights of Way Officer
Supports in principle any move to provide a cycleway through the site on the line of the existing
PROW, (providing there’s no financial burden for GCC-PROW Team).

It appears that Footpaths EQU/19 and 20 will be tarmacked which is acceptable. Each path
should be tarmacked to a width of 2.0m and constructed to GCC specifications.

EQU/19 runs across the north western corner of the site. The tarmacked route now indicated on
the plans doesn’t match the historic route for this path. No issues are raised with this minor
‘diversion’ if it means the footpath route fits the site layout better. However, the applicant should
apply for a legal diversion order if this is going to be the future recognised route for the footpath
under section 257 TCPA 1990. The order needs to be made and confirmed before the
development is substantially complete, so the applicant should apply as soon as possible to allow
time for the legal process to run.

The design for a suitable anti-vehicle barrier at the point where EQU/19 exits/enters the site by
Brooklyn Villas must be agreed with GCC PROW/Highways.

There is currently a stile on EQU/19 where it junctions with Naas Lane almost adjacent to the
main access road into the estate. This should be removed to leave a 2m wide gap in the boundary
fence/hedge.

Page 16



At the northern end of EQU/20 the existing gate should be upgraded to a staggered roadside
safety barrier and the tarmac extended on the roadside verge so there is a continuous surfaced
path all along EQU/20 as far as the tarmac carriageway of Naas Lane. All to be agreed with GCC
PROW/Highways. The redundant footpath signs here should be removed and replaced with new,
by agreement with GCC-PROW.

At the southern end of EQU/20, the existing stile must be removed as it’s no longer needed.

Off-site works: The proposed surfacing of Footpath EQU/19 as it runs in front of the existing
dwellings to the west of the site (Brooklyn Villas, Ferndale Villa and Fairfield Villa) to link up with
the nearby Crest Nicholson site will need to be included in a s278 agreement.

An additional plan indicating the proposed Public Rights of Way Access arrangements has been
submitted and has been sent to the PROW Officer for consideration.

4.4 Natural England
Natural England had no further comments to make on this reserved matters application over
and above our previous advice letter dated 1st January 2020 which advised the following:

No objection subject to appropriate mitigation being secured to ensure that the development
would not:

 Have an adverse impact on the integrity of the Cotswold Beechwoods Special Area of
Conservation; and

 Would not damage or destroy the interest features for which the Cotswold Commons
and Beechwoods Site of Special Scientific Interest has been notified.

In order to mitigate these adverse effects and make the development acceptable, 40% of the
site should comprise green infrastructure including public open space. It is advised that an
appropriate planning condition or obligation is attached to any planning permission to secure
these measures.

4.5 Landscape Adviser
Requested a number of changes to the species of trees to provide more appropriate species
that better adapt to climate change, are more common in the Severn Vale (lowland) landscape
and to maximise the benefits to wildlife and

Additional planting is required to the basin area, as this is still looking very engineered in
appearance. A native scrub mix and/or marginal wetland planting would be appropriate.

Drifts of native bulbs into the POS areas – to provide early food sources for insect pollinators.
Include drifts of native bulbs all along the NW ‘wildlife walk’ strip as well.

Amended plans have now been submitted to address the issues raised above and the
Landscape Adviser has confirmed that the proposed landscaping scheme is acceptable.

4.6 Arboriculturist

Existing Trees

The site is affected by a Tree Preservation Order (TPO). There are 6no. trees around the
periphery of the site protected. The protected trees are all proposed for retention.

No specific details of how the existing trees will be protected in accordance with BS 5837(2012)
has been submitted and there is at least 1no. protected tree on the eastern boundary where a
proposed turning head appears to be proposed to be installed within its RPZ. Condition 19 on
the outline planning permission requires this information to be provided prior to the

Page 17



commencement of any development.

Semi-permanent reptile fence is proposed to be installed during construction, but posts are
proposed to be sandbagged wherein any RPZ’s (this is welcome).

Proposed Tree Planting
The proposed tree planting scheme in terms of number and location is generally acceptable.

The application proposes a fair level of street line cover on the main arterial route into the
development. The proposed community Orchard is welcome, and the areas of POS are fairly
covered.

Agree with the Landscape Advisers comments in respect to the proposed species which will
need amending.

There are also some important maintenance and management prescriptions laid out proposed
tree installation, management and maintenance documents. It is not uncommon for planting
schemes to be installed in accordance approved plans, then to not be maintained appropriately,
resulting in trees not surviving. It is important that a planning condition be applied to any
permission to ensure the management and maintenance documents are enforceable.

Conclusion
No objection subject to the proposed tree species being amended in line with the Landscape
Consultants advice and a number of conditions.

4.7 Open Space and Playing Pitch Adviser
No objection has been raised to the proposed public open space provision, LEAP or MUGA
which are all in accordance with the principles agreed at the outline stage.

Additional detailed information has been requested in relation to the LEAP and MUGA relating
to signage, fencing, gates and surfacing. An update on these matters will be provided at the
Committee meeting.

4.8 Ecology Adviser
Due consideration has been given to protected species mitigation (notably reptile mitigation
and minimising site lighting to reduce impacts on foraging bats), the protection of existing
ecologically valuable habitats and proposed habitats of ecological value. However, clarification
is required on the following:

 Details of the habitat areas for proposed and retained habitats in relation to the overall
site area are required to confirm that there is 40% green infrastructure within the
development in accordance with the requirements of condition 6.

 With reference to conditions 11 and 12, the lighting strategy generally avoids natural
habitats around the periphery of the site and uses ‘warm light’ for bats. However, it
appears that there will be light s/pill, (although low), into the brook area on the northeast
corner. Clarification is required as to how much light spill will affect the brook and
associated habitat.

 The Home Owner Information pack has yet to be submitted for review – condition 16
does not, however, require this information to be submitted at this stage.

The applicant had been requested to provide additional information/clarification to address the
outstanding issues raised and the response and any further advice from the Ecologist will be
reported at the Committee meeting.

4.9 Contaminated Land Adviser
No further comments on the basis that contaminated land conditions are attached to the outline
planning permission. Page 18



4.10 Drainage Adviser
Condition 7 on the outline planning permission requires the submission a detailed drainage
strategy, in accordance with the principles set out in the approved Drainage Strategy Report
(Report No. 11093/01A). The condition requires that strategy must include detailed design, a
timetable for its implementation, demonstrate the technical feasibility/viability of the drainage
system through the use of SuDS to manage the flood risk to the site and elsewhere and the
measures taken to manage the water quality for the life time of the development.

The Drainage Adviser is satisfied that the requirements of condition 7 have been met.

Condition 8 on the outline planning permission requires a SuDS management and
Maintenance plan to be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority
prior to the occupation of any dwellings. This information has not yet been provided.

4.11 Lead Local Flood Authority (LLFA)

Awaiting comments.

4.12 Severn Trent Water
No comments have been received.

4.13 Environmental Protection Adviser
The submitted noise assessment appears acceptable. The glazing and ventilation specifications
detailed in Table 6.2 should be implemented.

4.14 City Archaeologist
The archaeological evaluation has been completed. The investigation found no evidence for
archaeological remains.

4.15 Housing Strategy and Enabling Officer
The reserved matters application is in line with the outline consent with regards to Affordable
Housing, as such the mix, type and tenure of Affordable Housing is agreed and will meet the
priority housing need within the City.

Subject to clarification on the following issues the application is supported:
 The suitability for the M4(3) bungalow for immediate occupation by a wheelchair user.
 That the Nationally Described Space Standard (NDSS) is met.
 That the Affordable Housing is suitably located on the development to ensure a mixed

and balanced community.

Market Housing mix
The proposed open market housing mix does not reflect the Local Housing Needs Assessment
(LHNA) and an increase in the number of two-bedroom market houses would be welcomed.

Additional information together with a plan addressing comments on the clustering of the
affordable housing units has been submitted. The advice of the Housing Strategy and Policy
Manager in relation to the additional information/amendments will be reported at Committee.

4.16 Urban Design Adviser (comments in relation to 21/00317/REM)
Previous comments in relation to the character of the streets have been incorporated into the
revised designs and the amendments are considered to be positive.

4.17 Stroud District Council
No comments received Page 19



4.18 Quedgeley Town Council
No comments received.

4.19 Hardwicke Parish Council
No comments received.

4.20 Waste Minimisation
No objection.

5.0 PUBLICITY AND REPRESENTATIONS

5.1 Neighbouring properties were notified, press and site notices were published and displayed.

5.2 One representation has been received raising the following issues:
 Questions the plans for building the “future access to 2 Brookland Villas”.
 There appears to be a footway round the attenuation pond that leads into the front garden

of 2 Brookland Villas.
 What is the plan for the adjoining boundary fence.

6.0 OFFICER OPINION

Legislative background
6.1 Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires the Local Planning

Authority to determine planning applications in accordance with the Development Plan, unless
material considerations indicate otherwise.

6.2 Section 70(2) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended) states that in dealing
with a planning application, the Local Planning Authority should have regard to the following:
a) the provisions of the development plan, so far as material to the application;
b) any local finance considerations, so far as material to the application; and
c) any other material considerations.

6.3 The development plan consists of the Gloucester, Cheltenham and Tewkesbury Joint Core
Strategy (JCS) and the partially saved 1983 City of Gloucester Local Plan. However, as outlined
earlier, the 1983 Local Plan is considered to be out-of-date.

6.4 Outline planning permission has been granted for this site on 4th March 2021 (ref.
18/01228/OUT). All matters were reserved for future consideration with the exception of the
means of access which was proposed from Naas Lane. The principle of development has
therefore been established and the current application is seeking approval of the matters
reserved at the outline stage only, (appearance, landscaping, layout and scale).

It is considered that the main issues with regards to this application are as follows:
 Access
 Layout
 Scale
 Appearance
 Landscaping
 Affordable Housing and Housing Mix
 Open Space and Recreation
 Residential Amenity
 Drainage and Flooding
 Ecology

Page 20



Access
6.5 Paragraph 111 of the NPPF provides that development should only be prevented or refused on

highways grounds if there would be an unacceptable impact on highway safety, or the residual
impacts upon the road network would be severe. Policy INF1 of the JCS requires safe and
accessible connections to the transport network.

6.6 Vehicle access to the development site is proposed via a simple priority junction from Naas Lane
by way of a new junction located between an existing farm access and water infrastructure on
the southwestern side of Naas Lane.

6.7 This means of access was considered and approved as part of the outline planning application.

6.8 The Local Highway Authority has confirmed that the development can provide for a safe usable
local highway network, pedestrian and cycle movement, the turning of large vehicles and suitable
levels of off-street parking and no highway objection is raised.

Layout
6.9 The NPPF states that new residential developments should be of high quality design, create

attractive places to live, and respond to local character integrating into the local environment.
Policy SD3 requires all developments to demonstrate how they contribute to the principles of
sustainability, Policy SD4 sets out requirements for high quality design, Policy SD6 requires
development to protect or enhance landscape character while Policy SD10 requires housing of
an appropriate density, compatible with good design, the protection of heritage assets, local
character and compatible with the road network. These design aspirations are also reflected in
the emerging City Plan.

6.10 Policy SD4 part ii states that: “New development should create clear and logical layouts that
contribute to a strong and distinctive identity and which are easy to understand and navigate.
This should be achieved through a well-structured and defined public realm, with a clear
relationship between uses, buildings, routes and spaces, and through the appropriate use of
vistas, landmarks and focal points.”

6.11 Whilst the detail of the access, layout, scale, appearance and landscaping of the development
are “reserved matters” it was necessary for the Local Planning Authority at the outline stage to
consider whether the site could accommodate up to 97 homes whilst providing a high quality
urban environment.

6.12 An illustrative masterplan was submitted with the outline application to demonstrate that the site
could satisfactorily accommodate the quantum of development. This showed a landscape led
masterplan, the general structure and illustrative information on appearance, design principles
and the mix of units were considered acceptable and satisfactorily demonstrated that 97
dwellings could be accommodated on the site in an acceptable manner.

6.13 The proposed layout generally follows the principles set out in the illustrative masterplan with
the provision of 97 dwellings together with the areas of public open space, footpaths, play
spaces in the form of a LEAP and MUGA, green infrastructure, SUDs attenuation pond, foul
pumping station and electricity substation.

6.14 The proposed layout follows a central perimeter block arrangement to provide security and
provide overlooking of public spaces with a centrally located primary street providing access to
a number of smaller, more informal shared surface streets. The back to back distances
between properties are all between 20-21 metres. With the exception a few plots gardenPage 21



depths are generally a minimum of 10m in depth which given the generous amount of open
space within the site is considered acceptable.

6.15 The proposal would incorporate the children’s play areas with the inclusion of a LEAP and
MUGA in accordance with the requirements of the S106 Agreement.

6.16 In accordance with the requirements of the outline permission 40% of the site would be
provided as green infrastructure. The proposed layout would provide 1.83 ha (40.49%) of the
site area as public open space provision. The layout would also incorporate the minimum
landscaping buffers to the site boundaries and adjacent to Dimore Brook, as required by
condition 11, with a 10m wide buffer along the eastern, north eastern and southern boundaries,
a 5m wide buffer along the western boundary and a 10m buffer, clear of development adjacent
to Dimore Brook.

6.17 The existing public rights of way would be routed through the open space with a minor
diversion to EQU19 and upgraded with hard surfacing materials.

6.18 A new vehicle access would be provided to the adjacent property at 2 Brooklyn Villas along the
western boundary of the site off a shared drive from the main access road. This would be
constructed to adoptable standards.

6.19 Dwellings along the eastern boundary of the site would be set back and orientated to minimise
any noise impact from the adjacent railway line. The Environmental Protection Adviser has
confirmed that the submitted noise assessment is acceptable subject to the inclusion of the
recommended glazing and ventilation specifications. The eastern boundary adjacent to the
railway line would be fenced and screened with planting to provide security.

6.20 Overall, it is considered that the layout of the proposal accords with the requirements of policy
SD4 of the JCS and the requirements of the outline planning permission.

Scale
6.21 The NPPF states that new residential developments should be of high quality design create

attractive places to live, and respond to local character integrating into the local environment.
Part i of Policy SD4 states that new development should be: “…of a scale, type, density and
materials appropriate to its setting.”

6.22 The development is predominantly 2-storey houses with pitched roofs and single storey pitched
roof garages together with a 2-storey apartment block in the south eastern corner of the site.
There are also a number of 2.5-storey houses in the centre of the site along the main spine
road and one bungalow and it is considered that the scale is acceptable and accords with the
principles set out at the outline stage, is appropriate in the context of the existing houses to the
west of the site and the newer developments in the wider area.

Appearance
6.23 The NPPF states that new residential developments should be of high quality design create

attractive places to live. Policy SD4 also seeks appropriate materials for the setting of the
development. Policy SD4 seeks to achieve good design by agreeing materials that are
appropriate to the site and its setting. Table SD4c expands on this and states that materials
should be of high quality and suited to their setting and purpose.

6.24 The predominant materials of the adjacent houses and the newer developments in the vicinity
are red brick and render.

6.25 The applicant has proposed a variety of standard house types across the site with a range of 1
to 4 bedroom dwellings across the scheme with varying external finishes comprising a mixturePage 22



of two different red bricks and a rough dressed reconstituted stone with a combination of
blue/black fibre cement slates and rustic red duoplain tiles.

6.26 Overall, it is considered that the appearance of the dwellings and the overall development is
acceptable would conform to the requirements of SD4 of the JCS.

Landscaping
6.27 Part iv of Policy SD 4 seeks to ensure that landscape areas, open space and public realm are

of high quality, provide a clear structure and constitute an integral and cohesive element within
the design. Policy SD6 which seeks to ensure that development considers the landscape
sensitivity of the area in which they are located.

6.28 As the proposal is a reserved matters application following the previous granting of outline
planning permission, the principle of the development in this landscape and environment has
already been considered. It is therefore the quality of the landscape provision within the
proposed development is the issue to be assessed.

6.29 An illustrative masterplan was submitted with the outline application showed a landscape led
masterplan with a minimum of 40% of the site to be provided as green infrastructure.

6.30 In general terms the principles and objectives of the Design and Access Statement submitted
at the outline application have been followed. The development includes:

 The retention and reinforcement of the existing tree and hedgerows to the perimeter of
the site.

 The retention of grassland in the south eastern part of the site to be used as a receptor
area for reptile translocation.

 The provision of high quality formal and informal open spaces.
 Increased biodiversity and enhanced wildlife habitats including a new wetland feature,

grasslands, scrub and hedgerows.
 A community orchard in the south eastern corner.

6.31 Amended landscape plans have been submitted to address the comments received from the
Landscape Adviser and the Tree Officer. These amendments satisfactory address all of the
concerns raised, and it is considered that the proposal accords with the principles established
at the outline stage and with the relevant policies.

Affordable Housing and Housing Mix
6.32 The NPPF states that where local authorities have identified the need for affordable housing,

polices should be set for meeting this need on site, unless off site provision or a financial
contribution can be robustly justified. Policy SD12 of the JCS provides that a minimum of 20%
affordable housing will be sought on sites of 11 or more dwellings in the Gloucester City
administrative area.

6.33 The provision should include a balanced mix of dwelling types, sizes and tenures to meet the
identified needs of the area and to contribute to mixed communities and a balanced housing
market.

6.34 The Section 106 Agreement requires the provision of 25% affordable housing in a mix of 75%
affordable and social rented homes and 25% shared ownership. The reserved matters
application is in line with the outline consent and as such the mix, type and tenure has been
agreed. A total of 24 units are proposed comprising:

Affordable rent
 6 no. one-bed apartments
 1 no. one-bed bungalow Page 23



 4 no. two-bed houses
 4 no. three-bed houses

Social rent
 3 no. four-bed houses

Shared ownership
 4 no. two-bed houses
 2 no. three-bed houses

6.35 The Strategic Housing and Project Manager requested clarification on a number of matters and
requested amendments to the layout to improve the clustering of the affordable units. Amended
plans to address the clustering and further information has been received. The advice of the
Strategic Housing and Project Manager on these amendments will be reported Committee.

6.36 The proposed open market mix of houses comprise 7 no. two-bed houses, 20 no. three-bed
houses and 40 no. four-bed houses. The mix was amended to better reflect the Local Housing
Needs Assessment (LHNA). Whilst it is acknowledged that this still does not meet the LHNA the
proposal would contribute towards providing a mixed and balanced housing development and
on balance it is considered acceptable in this instance.

6.37 It has been confirmed that all the proposed house types with the exception of one (PA25) meet
the National Described Space Standards (NDSS). The PA25 house type is a small open market
2 bedroom house, of which 7 are proposed. This house type would have a floorspace of 64 m²
compared to the 70m² specified by the NDSS. The applicant has indicated that this house type
has been designed to provide small affordable open market homes. Overall, 93% of the proposed
dwelling across the site would comply with the NDSS and, on balance when considering the
overall benefits of the scheme this is considered acceptable.

Open Space and Recreation
6.38 The NPPF provides that the planning system can play an important role in facilitating social

interaction and creating healthy, inclusive communities Policies INF3, INF4 and INF6 of the JCS
require new residential developments to provide for any additional infrastructure and community
facilities required to serve the proposed development. Policies OS.2, OS.3, and OS.7 of the 2002
Plan set out the council’s requirements for open space.

6.39 In accordance with the outline planning permission the application proposes 40% of the site
(1.75ha) as Green Infrastructure, the majority of which would comprise of accessible open space.
The Section 106 secured the provision of a LEAP (Local Equipped area for Play) and a MUGA
(Multi-Use Games Area) within the site, together with an off-site contribution towards formal
sports provision towards the improvement of existing outdoor sports facility in the area.

6.40 The proposed locations and general arrangements LEAP and MUGA with the requirements of
the S106 and are acceptable. Additional detailed information has been requested to address the
outstanding comments of the City Council’s Public Open Space Adviser and an update on any
outstanding issues will be provided at the Committee meeting.

6.41 A contribution towards off-site allotment provision was also secured as part of the outline
permission and this is unaffected by the current application.

Residential amenity
6.42 Paragraph 17 of the NPPF provides that planning should always seek to secure high quality

design and a good standard of amenity for all existing and future occupants of land and buildings.
This is reflected in Policy SD14 of the JCS which requires that new development must cause no
harm to local amenity including the amenity of neighbouring occupants.

Page 24



6.43 There are existing residential properties immediately adjacent to the west of the application site.
It is recognised that the relationship between the proposed development and the existing houses
is particularly sensitive and that there will be a significant change from the existing situation. In
accordance with the principles established at the outline stage there is a 5m wide landscaped
buffer along the western boundary. No. 2 Brooklyn Villas adjoins the application site along the
western boundary and comprises of the main house with a large rear garden including a number
of outbuildings and outdoor swimming pool. The proposed attenuation pond would be sited next
to the main house and as such there would be no direct overlooking of the side of the property.
Plot 1 would be locate approximately 6.5m from the western boundary adjacent to the
outbuildings at 2 Brooklyn Villas and has no windows in the side elevation. The proposed plots
fronting the land to the rear of the existing properties are considered to be an acceptable distance
from the boundary with a minimum distance of 10m. Given the orientation of the proposed new
houses, the distances involved and the considerable land to the rear of the existing properties
the proposed relationships are considered to be acceptable.

6.44 The relationships between the proposed new dwellings are considered to be acceptable to
ensure that the future occupiers would have a good outdoor amenity space and that there would
not be undue overlooking between dwellings.

Drainage and flood risk
6.45 The NPPF requires that development is directed to the areas at lowest risk of flooding, that new

development should take the opportunities to reduce the causes or impacts of flooding, should
not increase flood risk elsewhere and take account of climate change. Policy INF2 of the JCS
reflects the NPPF, applying a risk based sequential approach, requiring new development to
contribute to a reduction in flood risk and requiring the use of sustainable drainage systems.

6.46 The outline application was supported by a Flood Risk Assessment and Drainage Strategy (FRA)
which states that the site is entirely in Flood Zone 1 (area at lowest risk of flooding) and concludes
that the proposed development would not be at risk of flooding from all sources.

6.47 Information submitted with the outline application indicated that the management of surface
water runoff from the site by SuDS is feasible with an attenuation based surface water strategy.
The proposed surface water discharge rates were considered acceptable and the Drainage
Advisor was satisfied that there is adequate space for drainage basins to be provided within the
site and overall, the drainage strategy was considered to be acceptable.

6.48 The outline planning permission included of conditions requiring the submission, approval and
implementation of a detailed drainage strategy together with SuDS management and
maintenance plan. This information was submitted as part of the reserved matters application
and the Drainage Adviser had confirmed that the information is acceptable. It is therefore
considered that the proposal accords with the requirements of Policy INF2 of the JCS and the
relevant sections of the NPPF and is acceptable in this regard.

Ecology
6.49 The NPPF requires development to minimise impacts on and provide net gains for biodiversity.

Policy SD9 of the JCS similarly requires the protection and enhancement of biodiversity in the
area. The emerging City Plan requires the conservation of biodiversity and providing net gains,
and also policy E8 specifically restricting development that would be likely to lead directly or
indirectly to an adverse effect on the integrity of the Cotswold Beechwoods Special Area of
Conservation and the effects cannot be mitigated.

Habitats Regulation Assessment
6.50 European designated sites, such as Special Areas of Conservations (SAC), are afforded strict

protection under the Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulation 2017 (The Habitats
Page 25



Regulations). Local Planning authorities have a legal obligation to undertake a formal
assessment of the implications of any new plans or projects that may be capable of affecting the
designated interest features of European Sites before deciding whether to permit an application
to ascertain any adverse effects on the integrity of the protected site. The process by which this
is assessed is known as a Habitats Regulations Assessment (HRA).

6.51 An Appropriate Assessment under Regulation 63 of the Conservation of Habitats & Species
Regulations 2017 (as amended) was undertaken at the outline application stage by the City
Council’s Ecology Advisor. The Assessment acknowledged and welcomed that 40% of the site
area will be dedicated to POS / Green Infrastructure and was secured by condition. In addition,
the submitted plans indicating the footpath connectivity and availability of public open space and
recreational facilities in the area demonstrated sufficient locally accessible green space around
the development, which in combination with 40% of the Site dedicated for POS/Green
Infrastructure provides sufficient green space for the local population to avoid undue impacts on
the SAC.

6.52 It is was also recommended that every new home should receive documentation within the sales
pack explaining the location and sensitivities of the SAC, how to avoid impacting them and
recommending alternative locations for recreational activities such as off road cycling. This
requirement was secured by condition and needs to be submitted to and approved in writing by
the Local Planning Authority before the occupation of any dwelling.

6.53 There are a number of conditions on the outline planning permission requiring the submission of
further detailed information at the reserved matters stage (conditions 6, 11, 12, 13, 14 15, 16, 17
and 18). The Ecological Adviser has confirmed that due consideration has been given to
protected species mitigation (reptile mitigation and minimising site lighting to reduce impact on
foraging bats) together with the protection of existing ecologically valuable habitats and proposed
habits of ecological value. Additional clarification has, however, been requested in respect of the
light spill to the brook area and on the 40% green infrastructure provision. An update on these
issues will be provided at the Committee meeting.

Conclusion
6.54 This application has been considered in the context of the policies and guidance referred to

above. The proposal is consistent with those policies and guidance in terms of the provision of
the, layout, scale, appearance and landscaping impact upon the amenity of any neighbours and
the local area. Subject to final confirmation that the amended plans and additional information
submitted in response to the advice of the POS Adviser, Ecological Adviser and Housing
Strategy and Projects Manager is acceptable, it is recommended that these reserved matters be
approved.

7.0 RECOMMENDATION OF THE PLANNING DEVELOPMENT MANAGER

That subject to no outstanding consultee objections APPROVAL of the reserved matters of
layout, scale, appearance and landscaping be granted subject to the following conditions:

Condition 1
The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following
approved drawings/documents except where these may be modified by any other conditions
attached to this permission:

Final drawing numbers to be added as late material.

Reason
For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning.

Page 26



Condition 2
The development hereby permitted shall not be brought into use until the surface water drainage

scheme for the site has been completed in accordance with the details shown on the approved

plans and documents. The drainage scheme shall be managed and maintained thereafter in

accordance with the approved management and maintenance plan submitted with the

application.

Reason
To ensure development would not result in unacceptable risk of pollution or harm to the
environment and to ensure the proposed development does not exacerbate flood risk and
deals with surface water run-off from the site in a sustainable manner.

Condition 4
Where excavations or surface treatments are proposed within the root protection areas (RPA) of
retained trees and hedgerows, full details shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the
local planning authority before any development starts. The RPA is defined in BS5837:2012.
Details shall include the proposed locations of excavations and/or surface treatments, proposed
methods & specifications of excavations and/or surface treatments and any post excavation
remedial works. All excavations or surface treatments shall be carried out in accordance with the
approved details.

Reason
To prevent damage to or loss of trees.

Condition 5
The development shall be carried out in accordance with the glazing and acoustic specification
recommended in table 6.2 in the Noise Assessment prepared by Kairus Ltd (Project Reference
AQ051788, Revision V1 DRAFT, Issue Date 1st February 2021).

Reason
To safeguard the amenities of future occupiers of the dwellings.

Condition 6
No dwelling shall be occupied until the access, parking and turning facilities for that individual
building to the nearest public highway has been provided.

Reason
To ensure conformity with the submitted details in the interest of highway safety.

Condition 7
The development hereby approved shall not be occupied until visibility splays are provided
from a point 0.6m above carriageway level at the centre of the access to the application site
and 2.4 meters back from the near side edge of the adjoining carriageway, (measured
perpendicularly), for a distance of [Insert] meters in each direction measured along the
nearside edge of the adjoining carriageway and offset a distance of 0.6 meters from the edge
of the carriageway. These splays shall thereafter be permanently kept free of all obstructions to
visibility over 0.6m in height above carriageway level.

Reason
In the interests of highway safety.

Condition 8
No dwelling shall be occupied until boundary fences/walls have been installed in accordance
with the details indicated on the approved plan.

Page 27



Reason
To ensure adequate provision for privacy and in the interest of visual amenity.

Note 1
The development hereby approved includes the construction of new highway. To be
considered for adoption and ongoing maintenance at the public expense it must be constructed
to the Highway Authority’s standards and terms for the phasing of the development. You are
advised that you must enter into a highway agreement under Section 38 of the Highways Act
1980. The development will be bound by Sections 219 to 225 (the Advance Payments Code) of
the Highways Act 1980.

Contact the Highway Authority’s Legal Agreements Development Management Team at
highwaylegalagreements@gloucestershire.gov.uk. You will be required to pay fees to cover the
Councils cost's in undertaking the following actions:

• Drafting the Agreement

• Set up costs

• Approving the highway details

• Inspecting the highway works

You should enter into discussions with statutory undertakers as soon as possible to co-ordinate
the laying of services under any new highways to be adopted by the Highway Authority.

The Highway Authority’s technical approval inspection fees must be paid before any drawings
will be considered and approved. Once technical approval has been granted a Highway
Agreement under Section 38 of the Highways Act 1980 must be completed and the bond
secured.

Note 3
All new streets must be tree lines as required in the National Planning Policy Framework. All
proposed street trees must be suitable for transport corridors as defined by Trees and Design
Action Group (TDAG). Details should be provided of what management systems are to be
included, this includes root protections, watering and ongoing management. Street trees are
likely to be subject to a commuted sum.

Note 4
This permission does not extinguish any rights of way which may exist over the site. A legal
diversion order may be required under Section 257 of the Town and Country Planning Act
1990.

Note 5
There are trees in neighbouring properties that could be affected by the proposed development.
In the interest of good neighbour relationships, it would be helpful to consult with your neighbour
on the proposed works if you have not already done so.

Care will be required to minimise damage to the trees through the development activities such
as ground compaction and root severance. You have a legal duty to exercise reasonable care
in carrying out any works that may impact adjacent trees. Further information is available on
Guide-to-Trees-and-the-Law

Note 6
Any works on this land will need to be undertaken following engagement with Asset Protection
to determine the interface with Network Rail assets, buried or otherwise and by entering into a
Basis Asset Protection Agreement, if required, with a minimum of 3months notice before works Page 28



start. Initially the outside party should contact assetprotectionwestern@networkrail.co.uk.

Person to Contact: Caroline Townley (396780)

Page 29



N
aa

s 
La

ne

www.taylorwimpey.com

Taylor Wimpey Bristol

@ A2

1:1250

NAAS LANE

LOCATION PLAN

QUEDGELEY

22.01.21

CDS

A
10020014

0
10

Scale: 1:1250 (metres)

5 20

1005025
15

N

A 24.08.21 Site boundary amended. DAM

Page 30

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text_1
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_2
DRN

AutoCAD SHX Text_3
PROJECT

AutoCAD SHX Text_4
TITLE

AutoCAD SHX Text_5
REV

AutoCAD SHX Text_6
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_7
NOTES:

AutoCAD SHX Text_8
DESCRIPTION

AutoCAD SHX Text_9
DRAWN

AutoCAD SHX Text_10
REV

AutoCAD SHX Text_11
DRAWING NUMBER

AutoCAD SHX Text_12
JOB NUMBER



1
2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9
10

11
12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21
22

23

24

25

26

27

28
29

30
31

33

34

35

36

37

38

39

40

41 42

43

44

45

46

47

48

4950
51

52

53

54
55

56

57

59
60

61
62

6364

65

66

67

68

69 70

71 72 73 74

75

76

77

78

79

80

81

8283

8485

8687

88

89

90

91

92

93
94

95
96

97

V

V

V

V

53

56

55

54

57

58

46

43

N
A44

NT42

N
T42

NA44

NA44

NA44

NA44

H1356

N
T42

N
T31

NT31

NT31

N
A

34
N

A
22

N
A

22
N

A
34

N
A

34
N

A
22

N
A

22

N
A

34

N
A

22
N

A
22

N
A

34

NA32

N
A

32

N
A

32
N

A
32

N
A

32
N

A
32

N
A

34

H1356

NA32
NA32

NA32
NA32

H1356

N
B

31
N

B
31

N
B

31

N
B

31

N
B

31

N
B

31

N
B

31
N

B
31

NA32
NA32

N
T3

1

NA44

N
A

32

NA32
NA32

N
B

31

N
B

31

NT41

NA44

NA42

NA32

NA32

N
A

32

NT31

NA32

NA32

NA32NA32

NA42

NA42

NA42

NA42

NA44

NA45

N
A

45

NA45

NA32

N
A

46

NA46

N
T4

2

NA22

PA25
PA25

P
A

25

P
A

25

P
A

25

P
A

25

P
A

25

N
T42

NT31

NT41

H667

NA22

NA32NA32

(H
)

(H)

(A)

(A)

(A)

(A)

(H)

(A)

(H
)

(A
)

(A)

(H)

(A
)

(A
)

(H
)

(H
)

(A
)

(A
)

(H
)

(A
)

(A
)

(H
)

(H
)

(A)

(A
)

(H
)

(A
)

(H
)

(A
)

(H
)

(H)

(H)

(A)

(H)

(A)

(H)

(A
)

(H
)

(A
)

(H
)

(A
)

(H
)

(A
)

(H
)

(H)
(A)

(A
)

(A)

(H
)

(H)
(A)

(A
)

(H
)

(H)

(H)

(H)

(A)

(H)

(A
)

(A)

(A)

(H)

(H)(A)

(A)

(A)

(A)

(A)

(A)

(A)

(A
)

(A)

(H)

(H
)

(H)

(H
)

(A)

(A) (A)

(A
)

(H
)

(H
)

(A
)

(H
)

(A
)

(H)

(H)

(H)

(H)(A)

PUMP STN

ATTENUATION POND

BCP

BCP

BCP

BCP

A5
38

x6

MUGA

BCP

ORCHARD

ACCESS TO 2 BROOKLYN VILLAS

BS
CS

LEAP

BCP

BCP

BCP

1

2

3
4

5

6

7

8

9

10
1112

13

14

15

16

17

18

19
20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

2930

31

32

33

34
35

36

37

38

39

40

41
42

43

44

45
46

47-52

53
54

55

56

57

58

59

616263

64

65

66

67

68 69 70 71 72 73 74

75

76

77

78

79

80

81

82

838485
86

87

88

89

90

91

92

93

94

95
96 97

60

N

KEY

CLOSEBOARD FENCE

PANEL FENCE

KNEE RAIL

CLOSEBOARD FENCE

SCREENWALL

INDICATIVE LANDSCAPING
(Refer to detailed landscaping
proposals)

1.8 x 1.8 TIMBER SHED

EXISTING PROW

BIN STORAGE POINT

GATE

BIN STOREBS

CYCLE STORECS

ELECTRICITY SUB STATIONSS

BIN COLLECTION POINTBCP

EXISTING TREES
(with RPA indicated)

PROPOSED HABITAT AREA

TIMBER FOOTBRIDGE

WILDLIFE WALK

TAYLOR WIMPEY

AFFORDABLE

HOUSETYPE SCHEDULE

NAAS LANE, QUEDGELEY

HOUSE TYPE SQFT m2 NO. TOTAL TOTAL

SQFT m2

PA25 Canford 2 Bedroom 2 Storey 689 64.0 7 4823 448.1

NA32 Byford 3 Bedroom 2 Storey 976 90.7 25 24400 2266.8

NT31 Kingsdale 3 Bedroom 2 Storey 1040 96.6 6 6240 579.7

NB31 Braxton 3 Bedroom 2.5 Storey 1092 101.4 10 10920 1014.5

NA42 Huxford 4 Bedroom 2 Storey 1175 109.2 5 5875 545.8

NT41 Trusdale 4 Bedroom 2 Storey 1243 115.5 2 2486 230.9

NA44 Manford 4 Bedroom 2 Storey 1385 128.7 8 11080 1029.3

NA45 Marford 4 Bedroom 2 Storey 1564 145.3 3 4692 435.9

NA46 Ransford 4 Bedroom 2 Storey 1664 154.6 2 3328 309.2

NT42 Waysdale 4 Bedroom 2 Storey 1549 143.9 5 7745 719.5

Total 73 81589 7579.6

Affordable Rent

A538 1B Apartment 1 Bedroom 2 Storey 538 50.0 6 3228 299.9

H667 1B Bungalow 1 Bedroom 1 Storey 667 62.0 1 667 62.0

NA22 Blanford 2 Bedroom 2 Storey 864 80.3 4 3456 321.1

NA34 Coltford 3 Bedroom 2 Storey 1021 94.9 4 4084 379.4

Sub Total 15 11435 1062.3

Social Rent

H1356 4B House 4 Bedroom 2 Storey 1356 126.0 3 4068 377.9

Sub Total 3 4068 377.9

Shared Ownership

NA22 Blanford 2 Bedroom 2 Storey 864 80.3 4 3456 321.1

NA34 Coltford 3 Bedroom 2 Storey 1021 88.1 2 2042 176.2

Sub Total 6 5498 497.3

Total 97 102590 9517.1

RM Application Gross Site Area 11.20 Acres 4.52 Hectares
Nett. Developable Area 6.52 Acres 2.64 Hectares

Nett. Developable Coverage 15735 sq.ft/acre 3605 m2/hectare

Nett. Developable Density 14.88 Units/acre 36.74 Units/hectare

730 Waterside Drive
Aztec West
Almondsbury
Bristol BS32 4UE
T 01454 628400
F 01454 628401
DX 124894 Almondsbury 3
www.taylorwimpey.com
NHBC REG No 76463

Taylor Wimpey Bristol

F 19.05.22 Plots 67 to 71 and 79 to 84 amended rgc
E 31.03.22 Updated in line with highway consultation comments. DAM
D 19.11.21 Access to Plots 1 to 3 amended, introduction of paving in the

principal road, green screens added, house type name changed
from H1339 to H1356. KSL

C 06.09.21 Minor changes. RGC
B 13.08.21 Updated in line with Planning Authority comments. KSL
A 04.06.21 Layout updated as per planning consultation comments. DAM

DESCRIPTION DRAWNDATEREV

REVDRAWING NUMBERLAND CODESCALEDRN

PROJECT

TITLE

DATE

NOTES:

1:500
RGC

19.02.21 @ A0

SITE LAYOUT

20014.101 F

NAAS LANE, QUEDGELEY

0 10 20 30

Scale: 1:500 (metres)

5 40

Page 31



 

1 of 12 

Development Control 
4th floor Herbert Warehouse 

The Docks, Gloucester GL1 2EQ 
Tel:  01452 396786 

Email: development.control@gloucester.gov.uk 
Website: www.gloucester.gov.uk/planning 

 

 
APPLICATION NO: 18/01228/OUT 

VALIDATED ON: 15th October 2018 
TO: 
A Smith  
Custom Land Limited 
c/o David Barnes  
Star Planning and Development 
 140 Brandwood Road 
Kings Heath 
Birmingham 
B14 6BX 
 

TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING ACT 1990 
TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING (DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT PROCEDURE) 

(ENGLAND) ORDER 2015 

 
Location:   Land Adjoining, Naas Lane, Naas Lane, Quedgeley, Gloucester 

  
Proposal: The erection of up-to 97 dwellings together with access from Naas 

Lane, provision of Green Infrastructure including surface water 
attenuation and play space and other related infrastructure including 
foul water pumping station and vehicular access to 2 Brooklyn Villas. 
Outline application means of access not reserved. 

 
In pursuance of its powers under the above-mentioned Act and Order the City Council as the Local 
Planning Authority GRANT OUTLINE PERMISSION for the development described above in 
accordance with the terms of the above application and the plan/s submitted therewith subject to 
the following conditions: 
 
Condition 1 
(a)  approval of the details of the siting, design and external appearance of the building, and the 
landscaping of the site (hereinafter called the "reserved matters") shall be obtained from the City 
Council. 
 
(b)  application for approval of the reserved matters shall be made to the City Council before the 
expiration of 3 years from the date of this decision. 
 
Reason 
Required to be imposed by Section 92 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990. 
 
Condition 2 
The development hereby permitted shall be begun on or before the expiration of three years of the 
date of this decision, or 2 years from the date of approval of the last of the reserved matters to be 
approved, whichever is the later. 
 

 

Page 32



 

2 of 12 

Reason 
Required to be imposed by Section 92 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990. 
 
Condition 3 
This outline planning permission relates solely to the description of the development as set out in 
the Planning Application and development shall be undertaken in accordance with the submitted 
details, including the following documents and plans: 

• Red Line Boundary - Drawing No. 241-P-011 

• The principles set down in the revised Design and Access Statement prepared by Urban 
Wilderness dated April 2019. 

 
Reason 
To define the terms of the outline permission. 
 
Condition 4 
The first application for the approval of reserved matters (and any subsequent reserved matters 
application) shall include a detailed plan, showing the levels of the existing site, the proposed levels 
of the site, the proposed slab levels of the dwellings approved and a datum point outside of the site.  
Development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details. 
 
Reason 
In order to define the permission and ensure that the development is of a scale and height 
appropriate to the site in accordance with Joint Core Strategy Policies SD10 & SD14.   
 
Condition 5 
Any application for the approval of reserved matters which includes details of the siting of any 
dwelling shall be accompanied by a noise assessment and, a scheme of noise attenuation 
measures to protect the dwelling units (internal/external amenity space). Any noise mitigation 
measures so identified shall be implemented prior to the first occupation of the dwellings so 
affected and shall be retained for the lifetime of the use. 
 
Reason 
To safeguard the future occupiers of the dwellings and amenity of the area in accordance with 
Policy SD4 and SD14 of the Gloucester, Cheltenham and Tewkesbury Joint Core Strategy (2017).  
 
Condition 6 
The first application for the approval of reserved matters shall include a Green Infrastructure 
parameters and safeguarding scheme, to be agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority and 
thereafter the development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved scheme with a 
minimum of 40% of the site area designated to public open space and green 
infrastructure. 
  
Reason  
In accordance with the principles of good design and the incorporation of biodiversity in and around 
developments as required in the NPPF, SD10 & INF4 of the JCS, to preserve protected habitats 
and to ensure no adverse effects on the integrity of the Cotswolds Beechwoods SAC and the 
Severn Estuary SPA, SAC and Ramsar Site as a result of the development in accordance with the 
Habitats Regulations 2017 and policy SD9 of the Joint Core Strategy. 
 

Page 33



 

3 of 12 

Condition 7 
The first application for approved matters shall include a detailed drainage strategy, this should be 
in accordance with the principles set out in the approved Drainage Strategy Report (Report No. 
11093/01A). The strategy must include detailed design and a timetable for its implementation. The 
strategy must demonstrate the technical feasibility/viability of the drainage system through the use 
of SuDS to manage the flood risk to the site and elsewhere and the measures taken to manage the 
water quality for the life time of the development. 
 
Reason  
To ensure the development is provided with a satisfactory means of drainage preventing the risk of 
flooding. 
 
Condition 8 
No dwelling shall be occupied until a SuDS management and maintenance plan for the lifetime of 
the development, which shall include the arrangements for adoption by any public authority or 
statutory undertaker and any other arrangements to secure the operation of the scheme 
throughout its lifetime, has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. The approved SuDS maintenance plan shall be implemented in full in accordance with 
the agreed terms and conditions. 
 
Reason 
To ensure the continued operation and maintenance of drainage features serving the site and 
avoid flooding. 
 
Condition 9 
The development hereby permitted shall not commence until a scheme for the disposal of foul 
water shall has been submitted to an approved in writing by the local planning authority.  No 
dwelling shall be occupied until that part of the foul water drainage scheme which provide drainage 
to it has been constructed in accordance with the approved plans.  
 
Reason 
To ensure that the development is provided with a satisfactory means of drainage as well as to 
prevent or to avoid exacerbating any flooding issues and to minimise the risk of pollution. 
 
Condition 10 
Unless otherwise agreed by the Local Planning Authority development, other than that required to 
be carried out as part of an approved scheme of remediation, must not commence until parts A to E 
have been complied with:    
   
A. A preliminary risk assessment (a Phase I desk study) submitted to the Local Authority in support 

of the application has identified unacceptable risk(s) exist on the site as represented in the 
Conceptual Site Model. A scheme for detailed site investigation must be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to being undertaken to address those 
unacceptable risks identified.  The scheme must be designed to assess the nature and extent of 
any contamination and must be led by the findings of the preliminary risk assessment.  The 
investigation and risk assessment scheme must be compiled by competent persons and must 
be designed in accordance with DEFRA and the Environment Agency's "Model Procedures for 
the Management of Contaminated Land, CLR11".   

 
B. The detailed site investigation and risk assessment must be undertaken in accordance with the 

approved Scheme and a written report of the findings produced.  This report must be approved 
by the Local Planning Authority prior to any development taking place. 

 Page 34



 

4 of 12 

C. Where the site investigation identified remediation is required, a detailed remediation scheme to 
bring the site to a condition suitable for the intended use by removing unacceptable risks to 
identified receptors must be prepared and is subject to the approval of the Local Planning 
Authority in advance of undertaking.  The remediation scheme must ensure that the site will not 
qualify as Contaminated Land under Part 2A Environmental Protection Act 1990 in relation to 
the intended use of the land after remediation.  

 
D. The approved remediation scheme must be carried out in accordance with its terms prior to the 

commencement of development, other than that required to carry out remediation, unless 
otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  

 
E. Following the completion of the measures identified in the approved remediation scheme a 

validation report that demonstrates the effectiveness of the remediation carried out must be 
produced and is subject to the approval of the Local Planning Authority prior to the occupation 
of any buildings.  

 
F. In the event that contamination is found at any time when carrying out the approved 

development that was not previously identified it must be reported in writing immediately to the 
Local Planning Authority.  An investigation and risk assessment must be undertaken and where 
necessary a remediation scheme must be prepared; these will be subject to the approval of the 
Local Planning Authority.  Following the completion of any measures identified in the approved 
remediation scheme a validation report must be prepared, which is subject to the approval in 
writing of the Local Planning Authority prior to the occupation of any buildings. 

 
Reason 
To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the land and neighbouring land 
are minimised, together with those to control waters, property and ecological systems, and to 
ensure that the development can be carried out safely without unacceptable risks to workers, 
neighbours and other offsite receptors. 
 
Condition 11 
The first application for the approval of reserved matters pursuant to Condition 1 (and any 
subsequent reserved matters application) shall include a minimum 10 metre landscaped buffer 
along the eastern, north-eastern and southern boundaries and a minimum 5 metre landscaped 
buffer shall be retained along the western boundary.  A 10 metre wide landscaped buffer shall be 
included along the northside of the brook.  Unless otherwise approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority no built forms of development other than access as shown on Drawing No 100 
Rev C, public rights of way (Quedgeley Footpath 19 and 20), the vehicular access to 2 Brooklyn 
Villas and surface water features, shall be erected within the buffers.   
  
The details submitted pursuant to condition 15 shall include details of the method of construction 
and a scheme of supervision for the construction of the vehicular access, public rights of way and 
surface water features within the buffers.  The scheme of supervision within the buffers shall be 
administered by a qualified ecologist and arboriculturist.  The development shall be implemented in 
accordance with the details approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.   
  
Other than streetlighting for the vehicular access and if relevant the public rights of way the Lighting 
Strategy required by condition 13 shall not include external lighting within the buffers unless 
otherwise approved in writing of the Local Planning Authority. 
 
Reason 
To safeguard biodiversity as set out by the Habitats Regulations 2017, the Wildlife and Countryside 
Act 1981 (as amended). Page 35



 

5 of 12 

 
Condition 12 
The first application for the approval of reserved matters shall include the submission of an external 
lighting strategy. The strategy shall clearly demonstrate that lighting will not cause excessive light 
pollution or disturb or prevent bat species using key corridors, forage habitat features or accessing 
roost sites. The details shall include: 
 

I. A drawing showing sensitive areas and/or dark corridor safeguarding area; 
II. Description, design or specification of external lighting to be installed including shields, cowls or 

blinds where appropriate; 
III. A description of the luminosity of lights and their light colour; 
IV. A drawing(s) showing the location and where appropriate the elevation of the light fixings; 
V. Methods to control lighting control (e.g. timer operation, passive infrared sensor (PIR)); 
 
All external lighting shall be installed in accordance with the approved details and no other external 
lighting shall be installed. 
 
Reason 
To safeguard biodiversity as set out by the Habitats Regulations 2017, the Wildlife and Countryside 
Act 1981 (as amended). 
 
Condition 13 
The first application for the approval of reserved matters shall include a Landscape and Ecological 
Management Plan (LEcMP). The content of the LEcMP shall include, but not limited to the 
following: 

I. Description and evaluation of features to be managed. 
II. Ecological trends and constraints on site that might influence management. 

III. Aims and objectives of management including those in relation to dormice and bats. 
IV. Appropriate management options for achieving aims and objectives including appropriate 

enhancement measures. 
V. Prescriptions for management actions. 

VI. Preparation of a work schedule (including an annual work plan capable of being rolled 
forward over a five-year period). 

VII. Details of the body or organisation responsible for implementation of the plan. 
VIII. Legal and funding mechanism(s) by which the long-term implementation of the plan will be 

secured by the developer. 
IX. Ongoing monitoring and remedial measures. 
X. The plan shall also set out (where the results from monitoring show that conservation aims 

and objectives of the LEcMP are not being met) how contingencies and/or remedial action 
will be identified, agreed and implemented so that the development still delivers the fully 
functioning biodiversity objectives of the originally approved scheme. 

 

The approved plan will be implemented in accordance with the approved details. 
 

Reason 
To safeguard biodiversity as set out by the Habitats Regulations 2017, the Wildlife and Countryside 
Act 1981 (as amended). 
 

Page 36



 

6 of 12 

Condition 14 
Notwithstanding the submitted details, no works shall take place (including demolition, ground 
works, vegetation clearance) until a Construction Ecological Management Plan (CEcMP) has been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. The CEcMP shall include, but 
not limited to the following: 
 
i. Risk assessment of potentially damaging construction activities. 
ii. Identification of "biodiversity protection zones". 
iii. Practical measures (both physical measures and sensitive working practices) to avoid or 

reduce impacts during construction (may be provided as a set of method statements). 
iv. The locations and timing of sensitive works to avoid harm to biodiversity features (e.g. 

daylight working hours only starting one hour after sunrise and ceasing one hour after 
sunset) 

v. The times during construction when ecological or environmental specialists need to be 
present on site to oversee works. 

vi. Responsible persons and lines of communication. 
vii. The role and responsibilities on site of an ecological clerk of works (ECoW) or similar 

person. 
viii. Use of protective fences, exclusion barriers and warning signs. 
ix. Ongoing monitoring, including compliance checks by a competent person(s) during 

construction and immediately post-completion of construction works. 
 
The approved CEcMP shall be adhered to and implemented throughout the construction period 
strictly in accordance with the approved details. 
 
Reason 
To safeguard biodiversity as set out by the Habitats Regulations 2017, the Wildlife and Countryside 
Act 1981 (as amended). 
 
Condition 15 
The first application for the approval of reserved matters shall include a detailed Reptile Mitigation 
Strategy and Management Plan, in accordance with the recommendation made in the Reptile 
Survey Report, dated 20/06/2018, published 23/10/2018, prepared by Focus Ecology Ltd. This 
may be included in the LEMP and CEcMP reports. The approved plan will be implemented in 
accordance with the approved details. 
 
Reason 
To safeguard biodiversity as set out by the Habitats Regulations 2017, the Wildlife and Countryside 
Act 1981 (as amended). 
 
Condition 16 
No dwelling shall be occupied until, details of an A4 sized colour leaflet and its method of 
distribution to each dwelling upon that dwelling's particular occupation, shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  The details shall include but not be limited to: 
 
i. the location and sensitivities of the Cotswold Beechwoods SAC, 
ii. how to avoid negatively affecting it, 
iii. alternative locations for recreational activities and off-road cycling, and 
iv. signposting of longer circular walks, 
v. how copies of the leaflet will be circulated with homeowner sales packs, and 
vi. recommendations for dog owners for times of year dogs should be kept on lead when using 

sensitive sites. 
 Page 37



 

7 of 12 

The approved details shall be implemented unless agreed otherwise in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority.   
 
Reason 
To ensure no adverse effects on the integrity of the Cotswolds Beechwoods SAC and 
the Severn Estuary SPA, SAC and Ramsar Site as a result of the development. 
 
Condition 17 
The first reserved matters application submitted pursuant to Condition 1 shall be accompanied by a 
landscaping scheme. The submitted design shall include scaled drawings and a written 
specification clearly describing the species, sizes, densities, planting number of all trees, 
hedgerows and other landscaping features to be planted, the provision of root protection barriers, a 
specification of the details for the tree planting pits, the areas to be grassed and the treatment of 
any hard-surfaced areas.  Drawings must include accurate details of all existing trees and 
hedgerows with their location, species, size, condition, any proposed tree surgery and an indication 
of which are to be retained and which are to be removed.  No trees shall be planted within 5 metres 
of the watercourse. 
 
Reason 
To ensure a satisfactory and well-planned development and to preserve, enhance the quality of the 
environment and to enhance the biodiversity of the area. Landscaping also has the potential to 
impact on the integrity of the waterway and it is necessary to assess this and determine future 
maintenance responsibilities for the planting. Landscaping affects how the waterway is perceived 
and any trees within 5 metres of the waterway may have the potential to impact on the structural 
integrity of the waterway structure. 
 
Condition 18 
The landscaping scheme submitted in accordance with Condition 18 shall include a timetable for 
planting and maintenance schedules and shall be completed no later than the first planting season 
following the completion of the development.  If within a period of five years from the date of 
planting any trees, shrubs or other plants, or any tree planted in replacement, are removed, 
uprooted, destroyed or die, or become, in the opinion of the Local Planning Authority, seriously 
damaged or defective, they shall be replaced during the next planting season with others of similar 
size and species unless the Local Planning Authority gives written consent to any variation.  If any 
plants fail more than once they shall continue to be replaced on an annual basis until the end of the 
5-year maintenance period. 
 
Reason 
To ensure a satisfactory and well-planned development and to preserve and enhance the quality of 
the environment. 
 
Condition 19 
Notwithstanding the submitted details, no development, shall be commenced on the site or 
machinery or material brought onto the site for the purpose of development until full details 
regarding adequate measures to protect trees have been submitted to and approved in writing by 
the Local Planning Authority. This shall include: 
 
A. Fencing. Protective fencing must be installed around trees to be retained on site. The protective 

fencing design must be to specifications provided in BS5837:2012 or subsequent revisions, 
unless agreed in writing with the local planning authority. A scale plan must be submitted and 
approved in writing by the local planning authority accurately indicating the position of protective 
fencing. No development shall be commenced on site or machinery or material brought onto 
site until the approved protective fencing has been installed in the approved positions and this Page 38



 

8 of 12 

has been inspected on site and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Such 
fencing shall be maintained during the course of development, 

 
B. Tree Protection Zone (TPZ) The area around trees and hedgerows enclosed on site by 

protective fencing shall be deemed the TPZ. Excavations of any kind, alterations in soil levels, 
storage of any materials, soil, equipment, fuel, machinery or plant, siting of site compounds, 
latrines, vehicle parking and delivery areas, fires and any other activities liable to be harmful to 
trees and hedgerows are prohibited within the TPZ. The TPZ shall be maintained during the 
course of development. 

 
C. Trees with bat roosting potential as identified in section 2.4 of the Preliminary Ecological 

Appraisal with Preliminary Roost Assessment, dated 30/4/2018, published 23/10/2018, 
prepared by Focus Ecology Ltd shall be retained and protected in accordance with 
BS5837:2012. 

 
Reason 
To ensure adequate protection to existing trees which are to be retained, in the interests of the 
character and amenities of the area. 
 
Condition 20 
The first reserved matters application submitted pursuant to Condition 1 shall be accompanied by 
details of a recycling strategy for the site that accords with the approved waste strategy for the site. 
Provision must include appropriate and adequate space to allow for the separate storage of 
recyclable waste materials. The reserved matters application for each phase shall include details of 
waste storage provision for that phase which shall in general accord with the approved recycling 
strategy and the development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details.  
 
Reason 
To ensure the effective implementation of waste minimisation. 
 
Condition 21 
During the construction phase no machinery shall be operated, no process shall be carried out and 
no deliveries taken at or despatched from the site outside the following times: Monday-Friday 8.00 
am-6.00pm, Saturday 8.00 am-1.00 pm nor at any time on Sundays, Bank or Public Holidays. 
 
Reason 
To protect the amenity of local residents in accordance with policy SD4 and SD14 of Gloucester, 
Cheltenham and Tewkesbury Joint Core Strategy (2017). 
 
Condition 22 
During the construction period (including demolition and preparatory groundworks), no mobile 
plant or vehicles shall be operated on the site other than those with a ''white noise' type reversing 
warning alarm system, or an alternative system submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority.  
 
Reason 
To ensure that appropriate measures are in place prior to the commencement of development to 
protect the amenity of local residents. 

Page 39



 

9 of 12 

 
Condition 23 
No development shall commence on site (including demolition and preparatory groundworks), until 
a Dust Management Plan (DMP) has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. The DMP shall specify detailed measures relating to the minimisation and 
control of dust emissions from the groundworks/demolition/construction phases, in accordance 
with Guidance on the assessment of dust from demolition and construction - Institute of Air Quality 
Management (2014). The DMP shall specify mitigation measures in respect of minimisation and 
control of dust emissions from the proposed development site. The approved Plan shall be adhered 
to throughout the construction period. 
 
Reason 
To ensure that appropriate measures are in place prior to the commencement of development to 
protect the amenity of local residents. 
 
Condition 24 
No development shall start until the following details have been submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority:  
i. Detailed drawings of the pedestrian improvements including streetlighting to Naas Lane as 

indicatively shown on drawing no. 114 "Site Access Strategy"; 
ii. Detailed drawings of the vehicle Access as indicatively shown on drawing no. 100 Rev C; 
iii. Detailed drawings of the Vehicle Priority System as indicatively shown on drawing no. 105 Rev 

A; and 
iv. Detailed drawings of the improvements to Public Right of Way EQU19 as indicatively shown on 

drawing no. 241-P-014 
v. Arrangements for the maintenance of the highway works.  
  
No dwelling shall be occupied until the works have been completed in accordance with the 
approved details, are open to the public and arrangements have been made for the maintenance of 
the highway works.  
 
Reason 
In the interest of highway safety and to ensure that all road works associated with the proposed 
development are planned; approved in good time (including any statutory processes); undertaken 
to a standard approved by the Local Planning Authority and are completed before occupation. 
  
Condition 25 
Prior to commencement of the development hereby permitted details of a construction 
management plan or construction method statement shall be submitted to and approved in writing 
by the Local Planning Authority. The approved plan/statement shall be adhered to throughout the 
demolition/construction period. The plan/statement shall include but not be restricted to: 

• Parking of vehicle of site operatives and visitors (including measures taken to ensure 
satisfactory access and movement for existing occupiers of neighbouring properties during 
construction); 

• Advisory routes for construction traffic;  

• Any temporary access to the site; 

• Locations for loading/unloading and storage of plant, waste and construction materials; 

• Method of preventing mud and dust being carried onto the highway; o Arrangements for 
turning vehicles; 

• Arrangements to receive abnormal loads or unusually large vehicles; and 

• Methods of communicating the Construction Management Plan to staff, visitors and 
neighbouring residents and businesses. Page 40



 

10 of 12 

 
Reason  
In the interests of safe operation of the adopted highway in the lead into development both during 
the demolition and construction phase of the development. 
 
Condition 26 
No dwelling hereby permitted shall be occupied until a Travel Plan comprising immediate, 
continuing and long-term measures to promote and encourage alternatives to single-occupancy 
car use has been prepared, submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
The approved Travel Plan shall be implemented, monitored and reviewed in accordance with the 
agreed Travel Plan Targets. 
 
Reason 
In order to deliver sustainable transport objectives including a reduction in single occupancy car 
journeys and the increased use of public transport, walking & cycling. 
 
Condition 27 
Prior to the first occupation of any dwelling hereby approved, appropriate cabling and an outside 
electrical socket must be supplied for that dwelling to enable an outside electrical socket must be 
supplied for that dwelling to enable ease of installation of an electric vehicle charging point (houses 
with dedicated parking).  For those parts of the development with unallocated parking i.e. 
flats/apartments 1 EV charging point per 10 spaces (as a minimum) should be provided to be 
operational at first occupation of the relevant dwelling. The charging points shall comply with BS 
EN 62196 Mode 3 or 4 charging and BS EN 61851 and must be provided with a locking waterproof 
cover if located externally to the building. The electric vehicle charging points shall be retained for 
the lifetime of the development unless they need to be replaced in which case the replacement 
charging point(s) shall be of the same specification or a higher specification in terms of charging 
performance. 
 
Reason 
To promote sustainable travel and healthy communities. 
 
Condition 28 
The first reserved matters application for any given phase (or part phase) submitted pursuant to 
Condition 1 shall include the submission of a Housing Mix Statement to the Local Planning 
Authority for its written approval setting out, in respect of that phase, how an appropriate mix of 
dwelling sizes, types and tenures will be provided in order to contribute to a mixed and balanced 
housing market to address the needs of the local area, including the needs of older people, as set 
out in the local housing evidence base, including the most  up-to-date Strategic Housing Market 
Assessment for the area at the time of the submission of the relevant reserved matters. The 
development shall be implemented in accordance with the approved Housing Mix Statement for 
that phase (or part phase). 
 
Reason 
To ensure an appropriate mix of dwellings in line with the identified need of the area to contribute to 
a mixed and balanced community and balanced housing market in accordance with Policy SD11 of 
the Adopted Joint Core Strategy (December 2017). 
 

Page 41



 

11 of 12 

Note 1 
In accordance with the requirements of the NPPF the Local Planning Authority has sought to 
determine the application in a positive and proactive manner by offering pre-application advice, 
publishing guidance to assist the applicant, and publishing to the council's website relevant 
information received during the consideration of the application thus enabling the applicant to be 
kept informed as to how the case was proceeding. Detailed discussions and negotiations have 
been undertaken with the applicant in relation to the proposals, conditions and planning 
obligations. 
 
Note 2 (Works on the public highway) 
The development hereby approved includes the carrying out of work on the adopted highway. You 
are advised that before undertaking work on the adopted highway you must enter into a highway 
agreement under Section 278 of the Highways Act 1980 with the County Council, which would 
specify the works and the terms and conditions under which they are to be carried out. 
Contact the Highway Authority's Legal Agreements Development Management Team at 
highwaylegalagreements@gloucestershire.gov.uk allowing sufficient time for the preparation and 
signing of the Agreement. You will be required to pay fees to cover the Councils costs in 
undertaking the following actions: 
 
i. Drafting the Agreement  
ii. A Monitoring Fee iii. Approving the highway details 
iii. Inspecting the highway works 
 
Planning permission is not permission to work in the highway. A Highway Agreement under Section 
278 of the Highways Act 1980 must be completed, the bond secured, and the Highway Authority's 
technical approval and inspection fees paid before any drawings will be considered and approved. 
 
Note 3 (Public Rights of Way) 
1) There is a public right of way running through the site, the applicant will be required to contact 

the PROW team to arrange for an official diversion, if the applicant cannot guarantee the safety 
of the path users during the construction phase then they must apply to the PROW department 
on 08000-514514 or highways@gloucestershire.gov.uk to arrange a temporary closure of the 
right of way for the duration of any works. 

2) We advise you to seek your own independent legal advice on the use of the public right of way 
for vehicular traffic.  

3) The site is traversed by a public right of way and this permission does not authorise additional 
use by motor vehicles, or obstruction, or diversion. 

 
Note 4 (Impact on the highway during construction) 
The development hereby approved, and any associated highway works required, is likely to impact 
on the operation of the highway network during its construction (and any demolition required). You 
are advised to contact the Highway Authorities Network Management Team at 
Network&TrafficManagement@gloucestershire.gov.uk before undertaking any work, to discuss 
any temporary traffic management measures required, such as footway, Public Right of Way, 
carriageway closures or temporary parking restrictions a minimum of eight weeks prior to any 
activity on site to enable Temporary Traffic Regulation Orders to be prepared and a programme of 
Temporary Traffic Management measures to be agreed. 
 

Page 42



 

12 of 12 

Note 5 (Construction Environmental Management Plan (CEMP)) 
It is expected that contractors are registered with the Considerate Constructors scheme and 
comply with the code of conduct in full, but particularly reference is made to "respecting the 
community" this says: 
Constructors should give utmost consideration to their impact on neighbours and the public 

• Informing, respecting and showing courtesy to those affected by the work; 

• Minimising the impact of deliveries, parking and work on the public highway; 

• Contributing to and supporting the local community and economy; and 

• Working to create a positive and enduring impression and promoting the Code. 
 
The CEMP should clearly identify how the principal contractor will engage with the local 
community; this should be tailored to local circumstances. Contractors should also confirm how 
they will manage any local concerns and complaints and provide an agreed Service Level 
Agreement for responding to said issues. 
 
Contractors should ensure that courtesy boards are provided, and information shared with the local 
community relating to the timing of operations and contact details for the site coordinator in the 
event of any difficulties.  
 
This does not offer any relief to obligations under existing Legislation. 
 
 
 
Date:  4th March 2021      

City Growth & Delivery Manager 
 

PLEASE SEE NOTES SET OUT IN THE ENCLOSED LEAFLET 

Page 43



This page is intentionally left blank



GLOUCESTER CITY COUNCIL - DEVELOPMENT CONTROL

Committee: Planning

Date: 7th June 2022

Address/Location: 50 Salisbury Road Gloucester GL1 4JQ

Application No: 22/00051/FUL

Ward: Barton & Tredworth

Expiry Date: 3rd February 2022

Applicant: Mr Paul Butler

Proposal:
Erection of a single storey rear extension and rear dormer window to facilitate
the use of the dwelling as a 6 bedroom HMO

Report by: Nicola Bickerstaff

Appendices:
Site location plan
Existing & Proposed floor layout plan
Existing & Proposed Elevations

1.0 SITE DESCRIPTION AND PROPOSAL

1.1 50 Salisbury Road is a two-storey terraced dwelling which currently benefits from a private
rear garden.

1.2 The Victorian terraced property has been occupied as a single family home.

1.3 The proposal is to extend and convert the dwelling from a 3 bedroom dwelling to a six
bedroom HMO.

1.4 To enable the occupation of the property as a HMO, the proposal incorporates a ground floor
rear extension, an internal reconfiguration and the conversion of loft space to provide a sixth
bedroom on a second floor

1.5 The reconfiguration includes inserting ensuite bathrooms in each of the 6 proposed
bedrooms. The bedrooms which range in size from 8.6m2 to 12.2m2.

The ground floor extension creates the combined kitchen/living/dining area. The extension is
3m deep and 3.1m wide (to match the width of the existing outshot). The single storey
extension is 2.5m to the eaves in height with a flat roof.

The second floor incorporates a dormer to the rear of the property, which is set below the
ridge and above the eaves height to accommodate the sixth bedroom. The new rear dormer
includes two windows.

1.6 The 6 bedrooms range in size as follows (excluding each ensuite):
Bedroom 1: 8.6m2
Bedroom 2 9.1m2
Bedroom 3 12.2m2
Bedroom 4 9.1m2
Bedroom 5 9.1m2
Bedroom 6 10.2m2

Page 45

Agenda Item 7



The accommodation comprises:
Ground floor
Combined kitchen/living /dining room 25m2
Bedrooms 1 and 2 with ensuites
Downstairs WC
First Floor
Bedrooms 3,4 and 5 with ensuites
Second Floor
Bedroom 6 with ensuite

1.7 External materials are to match the existing, with a flat roof system over the rear extension
and dormer.

1.8 The property has sufficient amenity space to accommodate the extension.

1.9 The application is referred to the Committee because at the request of the ward Councillor.

2.0 RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY

None

3.0 RELEVANT PLANNING POLICY

3.1 The following planning guidance and policies are relevant to the consideration of this
application:

3.2 National guidance
National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) and Planning Practice Guidance

3.3 Development Plan
Gloucester, Cheltenham and Tewkesbury Joint Core Strategy (Adopted 11 December
2017)
Relevant policies from the JCS include:

SD4 – Design requirements
SD11 – Housing Mix & Standards
SD14 – Health and environmental quality

3.4 City of Gloucester Local Plan (Adopted 14 September 1983)
The statutory Development Plan for Gloucester includes the partially saved 1983 City of
Gloucester Local Plan. Paragraph 219 of the NPPF states that ‘…due weight should be given
to (existing policies) according to their degree of consistency with this framework (the closer
the policies in the plan to the policies in the Framework, the greater the weight that may be
given).’ The majority of the policies in the 1983 Local Plan are out-of-date and superseded by
later planning policy including the NPPF and the Joint Core Strategy. None of the saved
policies are relevant to the consideration of this application.

3.5 Emerging Development Plan
Gloucester City Plan
The Gloucester City Plan (“City Plan”) will deliver the JCS at the local level and provide
policies addressing local issues and opportunities in the City. The hearing sessions for the
examination of the pre-submission version of the Gloucester City Plan (City Plan) have

Page 46



concluded and the examining Inspector’s post hearing letter has been received. The letter
provides the inspector’s view on modifications required to make the plan sound. Policies
which are not listed as requiring main modifications may now attract more weight in the
consideration of applications, with those policies which require main modifications attracting
less weight depending on the extent of the changes required. The Plan remains an emerging
plan and the weight that may be attributed to individual policies will still be subject to the
extent to which there are unresolved objections (the less significant the unresolved
objections, the greater the weight that may be given) and the degree of consistency with the
NPPF (the closer the policies to those in the NPPF the greater the weight that may be given).

Relevant policies include:
A1 – Effective and efficient use of land and buildings
A9 – Extensions to existing dwellings

3.6 Supplementary Planning Guidance/Documents

Gloucester City Council; Home Extensions Guide 2008

All policies can be viewed at the relevant website address:- national policies:
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/national-planning-policy-framework--2
Gloucester City policies:
http://www.gloucester.gov.uk/resident/planning-and-building-control/planning-policy/Pages/
current-planning-policy.aspx

4.0 CONSULTATIONS

4.1 The Highway Authority raises no objection.
Highways have responded as follows (06.05.22):

Gloucestershire County Council, the Highway Authority acting in its role as Statutory
Consultee has undertaken a full assessment of this planning application. Based on the
appraisal of the development proposals the Highways Development Management Manager
on behalf of the County Council, under Article 18 of the Town and Country Planning
(Development Management Procedure)(England) Order, 2015 has no objection subject to
conditions.

Application for Planning Permission. Town and Country Planning Act 1990. This application
seeks permission for the conversion of existing 3 bed dwelling to a 6 bed HMO. The site is in
a very sustainable location with good access to public transport and all required amenities
accessible within an acceptable walk or cycle distance. The existing walking, cycle and
public transport infrastructure would therefore entirely support a ‘car free’ development in this
location.

Existing on-street parking restrictions would protect the sensitive parts of the network and
prevent unsuitable parking. GCC have no concerns regarding impact to the highway
network. I have reviewed the latest personal injury collision data and can confirm that no
incidents have been reported in the vicinity in the past 5 full years regarding incidents caused
by vehicles parking on street. The existing highway Conduit Street is not within a controlled
parking zone, however is controlled with a Traffic Regulation Order by way of double yellow
lines therefore areas of parking on street is at a first come, first serve basis. Based on the
analysis of the information submitted the Highway Authority concludes that there would not
be an unacceptable impact on Highway Safety or a severe impact on congestion. There are
no justifiable grounds on which an objection could be maintained.

Page 47



Conditions
1. The development hereby permitted shall not be occupied until details of secure and
covered cycle storage facilities for a minimum of no. 6 bicycles has been made available in
accordance with details to be submitted to and approved in writing by the LPA.
Reason:- To give priority to cycle movements by ensuring that adequate cycle parking is
provided, to promote cycle use and to ensure that the appropriate opportunities for
sustainable transport modes have been taken up in accordance with paragraph 110 of the
National Planning Policy Framework.

5.0 PUBLICITY AND REPRESENTATIONS

5.1 Neighbouring properties were notified by letter dated 9th March 2022, with an expiry date of
20th March 2022.

5.2 1 objection representation was received including a petition from 13 residents of Salisbury
Road. The concerned residents raised several issues which may be summarised as follows:

 Increased traffic
 Parking concerns
 Noise
 Fly tipping
 Anti social issues
 Garden space is insufficient

5.3 An objection was also received from Cllr Sajid Patel and Cllr Shamsuz Zaman Litu, Barton &
Tredworth ward

Several issues were raised in the objection, summarised as follows:

50 Salisbury Road is a Victorian terrace property in a narrow residential street. The property
was a family home lived in by one person. Now the new owners wish to convert the 3
bedroom family house into a 6 bedroom hmo. The main reason for this is probably so that
they maximise their returns/profits on their investment without any care for the other
residents in the street or even the local community.

The garden and amenity space is not big enough to accommodate a 6 bed hmo with 6
different individual residents.

There is already a serious problem with flytipping on Salisbury Road. A hmo in the street will
most likely result in exasperating this problem even further.

A 6 bedroom hmo could potentially lead to more noise and other anti-social problems.
We are aware of lots of examples of crime, asb and loud noise related incidents on and
around Salisbury Road over the past few years.

Parking is a major issue on and off Salisbury Road. There is very limited off road parking in
the street.
This conversion application does not create any off road parking which will only exasperate
the existing on street parking problem further. As you can imagine, this will inevitably result in
more cars being parked illegally and dangerously on double yellow lines.

The Barton & Tredworth ward is already the most densely populated area and also has the
least amount of open space in the city.
Granting consent for a hmo in this street will only create further short term and long term

Page 48



problems for both the street and the area.

5.4 The application can be viewed on: View your planning applications - Gloucester City Council

within the Barton & Tredworth ward.

6.0 OFFICER OPINION

6.1 L egislative bac kgrou nd
Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires the Local
Planning Authority to determine planning applications in accordance with the Development
Plan, unless material considerations indicate otherwise.

6.2 Section 70(2) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended) states that in
dealing with a planning application, the Local Planning Authority should have regard to the
following:
a) the provisions of the development plan, so far as material to the application;
b) any local finance considerations, so far as material to the application; and
c) any other material considerations.

6.3 The development plan consists of the Gloucester, Cheltenham and Tewkesbury Joint Core
Strategy (JCS) and the partially saved 1983 City of Gloucester Local Plan. However, as
outlined earlier, the 1983 Local Plan is considered to be out-of-date.

6.4 It is considered that the main issues with regard to this application are as follows.

 Principle of the proposal to extend the existing dwelling to accommodate a 6 bedroom
HMO

 Effect on the character and appearance of the street scene and the existing dwelling
 Traffic, parking and transport
 Residential amenity

6.5 Principle of the proposed extension to accommodate up to 6 people in a HMO
The NPPF requires decisions to promote an effective use of land in meeting the need for
homes while safeguarding and improving the environment and ensuring safe and healthy
living conditions.

6.6 JCS Policy SD11 – Housing Mix & Standards and Policy A1 of the City Plan are relevant

6.7 JCS Policy SD11 concerning housing mix and standards states that it is important that local
needs are addressed and there is a contribution to the creation of mixed and balanced
communities. With an appropriate mix of dwelling sizes, types and tenures.

6.8 Development proposals are required to make effective and efficient use of land and buildings
in accordance with Policy A1: Effective and efficient use of land and buildings.

6.9 A proposal should be of a suitable scale for the site and not have a significant adverse impact
on the character of the locality, the appearance of the street scene, or the amenities enjoyed
by the occupiers of the neighbouring properties.

Page 49



6.10 As in accordance with paragraph 3.1.13 of the City Plan. Careful consideration is given
within this report to the design and location of the proposal as well as to amenity space,
parking, servicing and access arrangements. Any residential development, including the
intensification of an existing dwelling, will be required to provide a suitable housing mix in
accordance with SD11 Housing Mix and Standards of the JCS. A proposal should provide
adequate off-street parking, access, covered and secure cycle storage which provides for
the existing and proposed use.

6.11 Reference is made to Policy A1, however the more specific saturation criteria is not
applicable to this proposal for a 6-bedroom HMO as this is under the threshold for
assessment (i.e. it is not a conversion into flats or a large house in multiple occupation). City
Plan Paragraph 3.1.13 states “Where it is proposed to intensify an existing building (by
conversion into flats or large House in Multiple Occupation) it is important to ensure that the
proposal would not have a significant adverse impact on neighbouring properties or the wider
area including its character. When assessing whether a proposed intensification of a
dwelling would impact the character of the area consideration will be given to the number of
existing of intensifications in the area.

6.12 Guidance on minimum sleeping room sizes is contained within Government Guidance,
Housing in Multiple Occupation and residential property licensing reform Dec 2018. It is
noted that the application property has a shared kitchen/living/dining room, and each
bedroom has an ensuite. The bedrooms all have a window outlook and range in size but are
all larger than the minimum sleeping room floor areas (6.51m2 for 1 person and only one is
over 10.22m2 for 2 people).

6.13 An important material consideration is Class L of the General Permitted Development Order.
Class L allows for the change of use of a single dwelling (C3) to an HMO for up to 6
occupants. The proposal is an extension to an existing residential property intended to house
six or less people as an HMO. As such the proposed use is permitted development and this
establishes a fall-back position which needs to be considered when determining this
application. Given that the applicant can lawfully use the property as an HMO for up to 6
people as allowed by the permitted development legislation the Council would be acting
unreasonably if it were to withhold planning permission for the proposal.

6.14 Overall, when taking the established fallback position into account it is considered that the
proposal complies with relevant policies for the proposed extension to accommodate up to 6
people and is acceptable in principle. The proposal accords with Policy SD11 of the
Gloucester, Cheltenham and Tewkesbury Joint Core Strategy (Adopted December 2017)
and policy A1 of the Pre-Submission Gloucester City Plan.

6.15 Effect on the character and appearance of the street scene and the existing dwelling
The NPPF states that good design is a key aspect of sustainable development, design should
be sympathetic to local character while not preventing or discouraging appropriate
innovation or change and optimise the potential of the site to accommodate an appropriate
amount and mix of development.

6.16 JCS Policy SD4 sets out requirements for high quality design, including responding positively
to and respecting the character of the site and surroundings, and being of a scale and
materials appropriate to the site and setting.

6.17 Policy A1 of the Pre-Submission City Plan requires overall improvements to the built and
natural environment, preserving the character of the area and appearance of the
streetscene, and appropriate bin storage..

Page 50



6.18 The proposal would not be visible within the street scene and would be constructed using
materials sympathetic to the host dwelling and single storey. The proposal by reason of its
design, siting, scale, massing, layout and materials is acceptable and contributes and
responds to the local context and maintains the character and appearance of the
surrounding area. The proposal accords with the NPPF, policy SD4 of the Gloucester,
Cheltenham and Tewkesbury Joint Core Strategy (Adopted December 2017), policy A9 of
the Pre-Submission Gloucester City Plan and the Gloucester City Council Home Extensions
Guide SPD.

6.19 Overall, subject to conditions the proposal complies with the above policy context.

6.20 Traffic and transport
The NPPF requires that development proposals provide for safe and suitable access for all
and that development should only be prevented or refused on transport grounds where the
residual cumulative impacts of development are severe. Policy A1 requires adequate
off-street parking, access, and covered and secure cycle storage.

6.21 Accessibility:
The site is in a very sustainable location with good access to public transport and all required
amenities accessible within an acceptable walk or cycle distance.
.

6.22 Parking:
Highways have been consulted and advised as follows. Existing on-street parking
restrictions would protect the sensitive parts of the network and prevent unsuitable parking.
GCC have no concerns regarding impact to the highway network.

The latest personal injury collision data can confirm that no incidents have been reported in
the vicinity in the past 5 full years regarding incidents caused by vehicles parking on street.

The existing highway Conduit Street is not within a controlled parking zone, however is
controlled with a Traffic Regulation Order by way of double yellow lines therefore areas of
parking on street is at a first come, first serve basis. Based on the analysis of the information
submitted the Highway Authority concludes that there would not be an unacceptable impact
on Highway Safety or a severe impact on congestion. There are no justifiable grounds on
which an objection could be maintained.

6.23 Whilst the occupation of the application property is intensified and there is no objection from
the highways authority. The site is in a very sustainable location with good access to public
transport and all required amenities accessible within an acceptable walk or cycle distance.
The existing walking, cycle and public transport infrastructure would therefore entirely
support a ‘car free’ development in this location. Existing on-street parking restrictions would
protect the sensitive parts of the network and prevent unsuitable parking. A condition can be
included as requested by Highways regarding providing cycle storage.

6.24 Residential amenity
The NPPF seeks to ensure that developments provide a high standard of amenity for existing
and future users. The NPPF sets out that decisions should ensure development is
appropriate for its location taking into account effects of pollution on health and living
conditions, and should mitigate and reduce to a minimum adverse impacts from noise, and
avoid noise giving rise to significant adverse impacts on health and quality of life.

Page 51



6.25 Policy SD14 of the JCS considers health & Environmental Quality, a proposal should cause
no unacceptable harm to local amenity, including the amenity of neighbouring occupants.
Furthermore Policy A1 of the City Plan includes criteria on the amenity of neighbours and
future residents. There should be adequate off street parking, access, covered and secure
cycle storage provided. Outdoor garden space should be at a level that reflects the character
of the area and scale of development.

6.26 Parking has been addressed. It is acknowledged there are concerns in the objections
regarding amenity space. 50 Salisbury Road benefits from a garden which, although
reduced, will be available to future residents. Parking has been addressed elsewhere in the
report and a condition has been recommended concerning cycle provision.

6.27 Impact on neighbours
52 Salisbury Road: Terraced property to the north
Overlooking: The proposal is a single storey rear extension and a loft conversion and there
aren’t overlooking issues with the proposed extension.
Overshadowing/loss of light/overbearing: The proposal would be single storey on the shared
boundary between the dwellings. The maximum height is 2.8m closest to the neighbours
boundary. No significant issues would be raised regarding the residential amenity of the
occupiers of no.52.

6.28 48 Salisbury Road: Terraced property to the south
Overlooking: The proposal is a single storey rear extension and a loft conversion and there
aren’t overlooking issues with the proposed extension.
Overshadowing/loss of light/overbearing: The proposal would be single storey and is set off
of the shared boundary between the dwellings. No significant issues would be raised
regarding the residential amenity of the occupiers of no.48.

6.29 Given the design, scale, massing and siting of the proposed development the proposal would
not cause significant harm to the amenities of any occupiers or adjacent occupiers through
loss of light, overshadowing, overbearing impact, loss of privacy, noise, smell, traffic or other
disturbance. The proposal accords with SD4, SD14 and SD11 of the Gloucester,
Cheltenham and Tewkesbury Joint Core Strategy (Adopted December 2017), policy A9 of
the Pre-Submission Gloucester City Plan and the Gloucester City Council Home Extensions
Guide SPD and the NPPF.

Page 52



6.30 Conclusion
This application has been considered in the context of the policies and guidance referred to
above. There are objections in relation to the use of the property being intensified, the
proposal is considered to be consistent with relevant policies and guidance in terms of the
principle, design, residential amenity and traffic considerations. The proposal is acceptable
and accordingly it is recommended that planning permission be granted.

In compiling the recommendation full consideration has been given to all aspects of the
Human Rights Act 1998 in relation to the applicant and/or the occupiers of any affected
properties. In particular, regard has been had to Article 8 of the ECHR (Right to respect for
private and family life, home and correspondence); Article 1 of the First Protocol (Right to the
use and enjoyment of property) and the requirement to ensure that any interference with the
right in this Article is both in accordance with the law and proportionate. A balance needs to
be drawn between the right to develop land in accordance with planning permission and the
rights under Article 8 and also Article 1 of the First Protocol of adjacent occupiers. On
assessing the issues raised by the application no particular matters, warrant any different
action to that recommended.

7.0 RECOMMENDATION OF THE PLANNING DEVELOPMENT MANAGER

7.1 That planning permission is GRANTED subject to the following conditions:

CONDITIONS & REASON

Condition 1
The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years from
the date of this permission.

Reason
Required to be imposed by Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 as
amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

Condition 2
The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the application
form, and drawing numbers 2040/PL03, 2040/PL04, 2040/PL05 and 2040/PL06 except
where these may be modified by any other conditions attached to this permission.

Reason
To ensure that the development is carried out in accordance with the approved plans and in
accordance with policies contained within the Gloucester, Cheltenham and Tewkesbury
Joint Core Strategy (Adopted December 2017).

Condition 3
The external facing materials to the development hereby permitted shall match in colour,
form and texture to those of the existing building.

Reason
To ensure the satisfactory appearance of the development in accordance with Policy SD4 of
the Gloucester, Cheltenham and Tewkesbury Joint Core Strategy (Adopted December 2017)

Condition 4
The development hereby permitted shall not be occupied until details of secure and covered
cycle storage facilities for a minimum of no. 6 bicycles has been made available in

Page 53



accordance with details to be submitted to and approved in writing by the LPA.

Reason
To give priority to cycle movements by ensuring that adequate cycle parking is provided, to
promote cycle use and to ensure that the appropriate opportunities for sustainable transport
modes have been taken up in accordance with paragraph 110 of the National Planning
Policy Framework.

Note 1
Your attention is drawn to the requirements of the Building Regulations, which must be
obtained as a separate consent to this planning decision. You are advised to contact the
Gloucestershire Building Control Partnership on 01453 754871 for further information.

Note 2
Your attention is drawn to the Party Wall Act 1996. The Act will apply where work is to be
carried out on the following:

 Work on an existing wall or structure shared with another property.
 Building a free standing wall or a wall of a building up to or astride the boundary with a

neighbouring property.
 Excavating near a neighbouring building.

The legal requirements of this Act lies with the building/ site owner, they must find out
whether the works subject of this planning permission falls within the terms of the Party Wall
Act 1996. There are no requirements or duty on the part of the local authority in such matters.
Further information can be obtained from the DCLG publication Preventing and resolving
disputes in relation to party walls – explanatory booklet.

Note 3
In accordance with the requirements of the NPPF the Local Planning Authority has sought to
determine the application in a positive and proactive manner by offering pre-application
advice, publishing guidance to assist the applicant, and publishing to the council's website
relevant information received during the consideration of the application thus enabling the
applicant to be kept informed as to how the case was proceeding.

Person to Contact: Nicola Bickerstaff (924926)

Page 54



Planning Application: 22/00051/FUL

Address: 50 Salisbury Road Gloucester

Committee Date: 7th June 2022

Site location plan

Page 55



Existing floor layout plans

Proposed floor layout plans

Page 56



Page 57



This page is intentionally left blank



Reference Status Site address Proposal Decision date

21/00830/FUL GRANT 71 Tewkesbury Road Gloucester GL2 9BE

Proposed two storey side & loft extension, pave front drive in permeable block and 

extend

drop kerb

01/02/22

22/00039/NMA GRANT 29 Westgate Street
Amendment to plans approved under permission ref. 21/01185/FUL to omit rear 

extension at first floor level and alter rear elevation
01/02/22

21/01239/FUL GRANT 5 Havelock Road Proposed side extension 01/02/22

21/01316/LAW GRANT Eastgate House 121- 131 Eastgate Street
Lawful development certificate to confirm proposed dentistry use (Use Class E) on the 

second floor of Eastgate House is lawful
02/02/22

21/01078/LAW GRANT Gloucestershire College, Llanthony Road Installation of a ground source heat pump 02/02/22

21/01255/LBC GRANT The Folk, 99-103 Westgate Street

Repairs to the façade of 99-103 facing Westgate Street Alterations to the ground floor 

of 103 to facilitate use as a co-working space Alterations and repairs to the passage 

running to the east of 99 to facilitate accessibility Internal alterations to enable 

accessibility to the ground floor Internal alterations to the rear chamber External 

alterations to the surface of the rear courtyard

04/02/22

21/01209/FUL GRANT Permali Park

Proposed alterations to Office elevations, replacement

gatehouse, Installation of a Fume scrubber, Demolition of

terrapin buildings, Demolition of existing warehouse & erection

of new warehouse.

07/02/22

21/01254/FUL GRANT 22 Haycroft Drive Proposed two storey side extension 07/02/22

21/00702/FUL GRANT 72 Oxstalls Lane Proposed single storey rear extension and two storey side extension 10/02/22

21/01112/FUL GRANT
Land West of The Orchard Centre, Gloucester Royal 

Hospital

Erection of a portacabin for a temporary period of 5 years, to accommodate uses 

associated with the Speech and Language Therepy Outpatients Department 

(retrospective application).

11/02/22

18/01244/FUL GRANT Vauxhall Terrace

Use of land including vehicular accesses to Vauxhall Terrace and Millbrook Street (via 

Tudor Lane) for vehicle repair business (Use Class B2). Demolition of existing building 

and construction of a replacement building for use as a vehicle repair workshop

14/02/22

22/00060/ADV GRANT 92 Barnwood Road Erection of advertisement hoarding to replace exsiting (non-illuminated) 17/02/22

Page 59

Agenda Item 8



Reference Status Site address Proposal Decision date

22/00017/CONDIT GRANT 5 Park Road
Discharge of condition 4 (Archaeology), 13 (SuDs), 26 (Management company) and 34 

(Cotswold Beechwoods) of permission 19/00296/FUL
11/03/22

22/00030/FUL GRANT 12 The Wheatridge Single storey rear and side extension with internal alterations 18/03/22

22/00035/ADV GRANT 39A London Road Upgrade of existing advert to support digital 'D poster' advert (internally illuminated) 11/03/22

22/00038/CONDIT GRANT 88 Westgate Street

Discharge of Conditions 4, 5, 6, 7, 8 and 9 of planning permission 21/00221/FUL for the 

Creation of a first floor flat above existing shop unit, to provide a 1No. two bedroom 

flat.

25/03/22

22/00045/FUL GRANT 1 Etheridge Place Erection of single storey side, rear and front extension with garage conversion 03/03/22

22/00049/LAW GRANT 4 Steeple Close Single storey rear extension 08/03/22

22/00082/NMA GRANT Ribston Hall High School
Non material amendment for permission 20/01177/FUL (Four external flues removed 

from NW elevation and one extraction fan and flue added to SW elevation)
15/03/22

22/00087/FUL GRANT 23 Grovelands Single storey side extension 16/03/22

22/00157/FUL GRANT Tesco Express Mead Road Proposed installation of new gas cooler 31/03/22

22/00165/FUL GRANT Warehouse 4 West Quay

Non material amendment to permission ref. 21/00639/FUL comprising revised front 

and side entrance glazing with alternative divisions, swing doors and black painted 

timber frames

03/03/22

Page 60



Reference Status Site address Proposal Decision date

22/00112/LBC Grant Denmark Road High School Internal refurbishment of a number of science classrooms 01/04/22

22/00125/LAW Grant Orchard House Sandhurst Road
Use of property as a care home for 4 children(application for Lawful Development 

Certificate)
25/04/22

21/01216/FUL Grant 142 Cheltenham Road
Proposed two storey side and rear extension with juliet balcony and single storey rear 

extension.
28/04/22

21/01116/ADV Grant 2 Heathville Road
Proposed post sign located facing London Road and proposed door sign fixeed above 

front door
07/04/22

21/01259/FUL Grant Arlingham House, Falcon Close
Introduction of 3 No. condensing units to be istalled horizontally on the south side of 

the building with new acoustic fencing
07/04/22

21/00468/FUL Grant 95A Grange Road
Variation of condition 2 of planning permission 16/00153/FUL (Construction of a 

dwelling) 
08/04/22

21/01153/FUL Grant The Old Log Pond, Bristol Road

Variation of conditions 25 and 26 on planning permission ref. 20/00889/FUL for the 

erection of seven commercial units (comprising of class A1, A2, A3 and D2 uses), 

together with car parking, landscaping and associated external works. The variation 

relates to the sale of goods from unit 3.

07/04/22

21/01303/FUL Grant 17 Bay Tree Road Two storey and single storey rear extensions 08/04/22

21/00922/FUL Grant 125 Bristol Road Proposal to install New Modular Extension 12/04/22

21/01289/FUL Grant 85 Lansdown Road Rear and side single storey extension 08/04/22

21/00615/JPA Grant Britannia Warehouse, The Docs
Prior approval for the conversion of existing B1a office building to No.38 C3 dwellings - 

Option A
27/04/22

Page 61



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	Copyright Notice for viewing documents via Public Access

	3 Minutes
	6 LAND ADJOINING NAAS LANE, QUEDGELEY, GLOUCESTER - 22/00355/REM
	Agenda Item 6 22.00355.REM - Naas Lane.pdf
	Naas Lane Location Plan.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	A2


	Naas Lane Site Layout Plan.pdf
	Naas Lane Outline Decision Notice.pdf

	7 50 SALISBURY ROAD, GLOUCESTER - 22/00051/FUL
	Agenda Item 7 - 50 Salisbury Road committee report 22.00051.FUL.pdf

	8 Delegated Decisions
	Agenda Item 8 Feb - Delegated Decisions.pdf
	Agenda Item 8 March - Delegated Decisions.pdf
	Agenda Item 8 April - Delegated Decisions.pdf


